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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT 

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable 

investors to comprehend our prospect and take informed investment decisions. This 

report and other statement - written and oral -that we periodically make, may content 

forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the 

management’s plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify 

such statements by using words such as “anticipates,” “estimates”, “expects”, 

“projects”, “intends”, “plans”, “believes” and words of similar substance in 

connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these 

forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been 

prudent in our assumption. The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertainties 

and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties 

materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could 

vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. 

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward looking statements, 

whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 





CHAIRMAN MESSAGE 

  

Dear Shareholders, 
I am honored to address you through this Chairman's 
Message as we present our annual report for the year 
2024-25. It is with great pride and gratitude that I reflect 
upon the achievements, challenges, and progress we 
have made together as a company. 
This year has been a defining period for our 
organization as we continued to build upon our legacy 
of trust, innovation, and operational excellence in the 
FIBC (Flexible Intermediate Bulk Container) 
manufacturing industry. 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited has always been 
committed to excellence, innovation, and sustainable 
growth, and the past year has been no exception. 
Despite the uncertainties and disruptions that marked 
this period, we remained resilient and adaptive, 
leveraging our strengths to navigate the changing 
landscape and emerge stronger than ever. 
As the world embraces more sustainable and efficient 
logistics practices, the role of FIBC products has never 
been more crucial. Our industry stands at the 
intersection of innovation and responsibility. We are 
not just manufacturers; we are problem solvers, 
ensuring that materials move securely and with 
minimal environmental impact. 
Performance and Growth 
During the year under review, the Company's 
performance was excellent in comparison to previous 
year. Total revenue on a standalone basis for the FY 
2024-25 stands at Rs. 11808.53 lakh in comparison of 
previous year which was Rs. 4554.91 lakh. Total 
revenue on a standalone basis for the FY 2024-25 stands 
at Rs. 46343.54 lakh in comparison of previous year 
which was Rs. 29455.55 lakh. 
Our team has worked tirelessly to strengthen our core 
business, ensure consistent quality, and deliver value-
added solutions tailored to the evolving needs of our 
global clientele. We also made significant strides in 
digitalizing our operations and enhancing 
transparency across the value chain. 
 
Sustainability and Responsibility 
As a responsible corporate citizen, we remain 
committed to sustainable manufacturing practices. 
From using recyclable materials and minimizing waste, 
to ensuring energy-efficient production lines, we are 
actively contributing to a greener future. 
 
 
 
 
 

People and Culture 
Our people continue to be our greatest asset. I extend 
my heartfelt appreciation to our employees for their 
dedication, adaptability, and commitment to 
excellence. 
 
Looking Ahead 
As we step into the new financial year, our 
focus remains on innovation, customer 
satisfaction, and sustainable growth. With 
new capacity additions on the horizon and 
promising demand trends, we are well-
positioned to capitalize on emerging 
opportunities in both domestic and 
international markets. 
On this note, would like to express my sincere 
gratitude to all our stakeholders including 
shareholders, bankers and for their 
unwavering support, our valued vendors for 
their trust and partnership, and our dedicated 
employees for their exceptional contributions. 
Together. we will continue to chart a path of 
success and shape a brighter future for HCP 
Plastene Bulkpack Limited. 
 

For HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited  
 

Sd/- 
Anil Shyamsunder Goyal 

Chairman 
 

 
 
 



  
 
  

 
 

(Rs. In Lakh) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

2024-25 
2023-

24 2024-25 2023-24 

Revenue from Operation 11808.53 4554.91 46343.54 29455.55 

Other Income 148.98 126.51 467.61 256.07 

Total Income 11957.51 4681.44 46811.2 29711.6 

Less - Expense for Cost of Material, Purchase of 
Stock in Trade, Change in Inventories, Employee 
benefit and other expenses 

10454.31 4427.4 10454.31 27789 

Profit / (Loss) before Interest, Depreciation & 
Taxation (EBDITA) 1503.2 254.02 3991.26 1922.62 

Less: Finance Cost 510.65 357.04 1461.66 1173 
Less: Depreciation 230.37 269.43 729.21 729.71 
Add: Extraordinary items 0  0 0 0 
Add: Exceptional items 0  0 0 0.06 

Profit / (Loss) Before Prior Period and Tax (PBT) 762.18 -372.45 1800.39 19.99 

Less: Prior Period Item 0 0 0 0 

Less: Provision for Taxation 0 0 0 0 

Current Tax 0 0 278.93 85.92 
Tax for Earlier Years 0 0 1.8 -9.01 
Deferred Tax 187.81 -96.07 184.15 -87.73 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
To, 
The Shareholders, 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
Ahmedabad 
 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 41st Annual Report on the business performance and operations 
of your Company together with the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditor’s Report for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2025. The consolidated performance of the Company and its Subsidiary 
has been referred to whenever required.  
 
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 

 
The summarized Financial Results of the Company for the period ended 31st March, 2025 are as 
follows: 

 



Profit / (Loss) after Tax (PAT) 574.37 -276.38 1332.91 30.81 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 0 13.41 9.05 8.91 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 574.37 -262.97 1341.96 39.72 

Profit attributable to Owners of the Company 574.37 -262.97 967.2 -107.56 

Non-Controlling interest 0 0 374.93 147.28 
Earning Per shares   
Basic 5.38 -2.59 12.57 0.37 
Diluted 5.35 -2.59 12.49 0.37 

 
2. BUSINESS SEGMENT 

 
The Company mainly operate in two division viz 
Woven Sack Division and Woven Label Division in 
which Company derives its sales through 
manufacturing PP Febric, PP webbing, PP Yarn 
and small and jumbo bags, Jaquard Labels. The 
Company has strong global presence and also cater 
the need of international market by doing job work. 
 

3. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 
 
STANDALONE: 
 
During the current period, your Company has total 
revenue of Rs. 11808.53 Lakhs as against Rs. 
4554.91 Lakhs in the previous year. The Company 
has profit of Rs. 574.37 Lakhs as compared to the 
Loss of Rs. 276.38 Lakhs in the previous year. The 
Company will continue to pursue expansion in 
domestic market and international market by 
utilizing the resources effectively and thereby 
expect to achieve profitability. 
 
CONSOLIDATED: 
 
During the current period, your Company has total 
revenue of Rs. 46343.54 Lakhs as against Rs. 
29455.55 Lakhs in the previous year. The Company 
has profit of Rs. 1341.96 Lakhs as compared to the 
profit of Rs. 30.81 Lakhs in the previous year. In the 
near future, the Company expects to achieve more 
growth. 
 

4. FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 

Though the base of the operations your Company 
is low as we are largely doing job work as against 
the direct sales, we are continuously working on 
achieving better capacity utilizations and  

generating direct sales in the Company as against job 
work model thereby improving top line as well as 
bottom line. For this, we are in the process of taking all 
the necessary steps including arranging required 
working capital. Further, we are also exploring new 
sales geography and working on opportunities of 
expanding product portfolio. We are optimistic about 
the overall demand of our products. 
 

5. MATERIAL EVENTS DURING THE YEAR UNDER 
REVIEW 

 
 The Company has complied with the Minimum Public 

Shareholding (MPS) requirements mandated under 
Rule 19(2)(b) and 19A of the Securities Contracts 
(Regulation) Rules, 1957 (“SCRR”) read with regulation 
38 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”) via using 
various method(s) i.e. Offer for Sale (OFS) mentioned 
in the SEBI Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/P/CIR/2023/18 “Manner of 
achieving Minimum Public Shareholding” dated 03rd 
February 2023 on Thursday, 25th January 2024 and it 
was undertaken in accordance with the circular bearing 
reference number SEBI/HO/MRD/MRD-PoD-
3/P/CIR/2023/10 dated 10th January, 2023 regarding 
the “Comprehensive Framework on Offer for Sale 
(OFS) of Shares through Stock Exchange Mechanism” 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
through the separate designated window of BSE 
Limited. 
 
The Shareholding of the Promoter and Promoter Group 
in the Company has reduced to 75.00% of the total 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of 
the Company.  

 
 

 



All the necessary 
compliances/submissions/intimations had 
been made by the Company to the Stock 
Exchange from time to time. 

 
 The Company has entered into 

“Memorandum of Understanding” (MOU) 
on 02nd July, 2024 with Saeed Ghodran 
Group, a Company incorporated under the 
laws of Saudi Arabia, having its registered 
office at Prince Turki Street, Al Kurnaish 
Dist. 2193, Al Khobar 34413, Saudi Arabia at 
Al Khobar–KSA to establish a Joint Venture 
Company in form of a Limited Liability 
Company to invest in setting up a Factory to 
Manufacture Bopp Woven Bags and Jumbo 
Woven Bags. 

 
No other material changes and commitments 
have occurred after the close of the financial year 
till the date of this report, which affect or is likely 
to affect the financial position of the Company. 
 

6. DIVIDEND 
 

With a view to loss during the year under review, 
the Directors are not recommending any dividend 
for the year (Previous year Nil). 
 
The Company on voluntary basis has adopted the 
Dividend Distribution Policy and the said policy 
is available on the website of the Company at 
www.hpbl.in/investor.  
 
There is no unclaimed/unpaid Dividend with the 
meaning of the provisions of Section 125 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

7. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the 
Company had not transferred any sum to the 
reserve. 
 

8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
The Company continue to operate in mainly two 
segments viz Woven Sack Division and Woven 
Label Division and there has been no change in 
the nature of Business of Company. 
 
 

9. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

Currently, the Company has two classes of shares: 
(A) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 
(B) Preference Share capital of Rs. 100 each 
 

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 
21,00,00,000/‐ divided into 1,60,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 
10/- each.  and 5,00,000 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference shares of Rs. 100/- each.  

 
The Paid-up Share capital of the Company consist of only 
Equity share capital of Rs. 10,67,48,370/- divided into 
1,06,74,837 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 

 
There has been no change in the authorised, issued, 
subscribed and paid-up Share Capital of the Company 
during the year under review. 
10. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

 
99.98% of the Company’s paid-up Equity Share 
Capital is in dematerialized form as on 31st March, 
2025 and balance 0.02% is in physical form. The 
Company’s Registrar is M/s. Bigshare Services 
Pvt Ltd. having office at A-802, Samudra 
Complex, Near Girish Cold Drinks, Off C. G. 
Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009. 
 

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 
 
There was no outstanding deposit within the meaning 
of Section 73 and 74 of the Act read with rules made 
thereunder at the end of the financial year 2024-25 or 
the previous financial years. Your Company did not 
accept any deposit during the year under review. 
 

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GURANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS 
 
Particulars of Loans/Guarantees/Investments made 
by the Company are provided in Note Nos. 4, 9 and 12 
of the Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements. 
 

13. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES AND LLPS 
The Company has formulated the policy for 
determining material subsidiaries. The policy is 
available on company’s website 
www.hpbl.in/investor. 
Pursuant to Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014, a statement containing the salient features of the 
financial statement of the Company’s Subsidiary/Joint 
Ventures/Associate Companies of the Company, 
bringing out the highlights of their performance, 
appears in Form AOC-1 at Annexure - A to this report. 



 
 

 
The Board of HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited or 
its duly constituted committees also have 
oversight at the affairs of subsidiary and regularly 
review various information w.r.t. the subsidiary 
companies that inter-alia includes: 
 

 Review the financial statements; 
 Review of material developments, 

financial and operating performance and 
strategies; 

 Review of significant transactions or 
arrangements entered into by the unlisted 
subsidiaries; 

 Review of utilisation of funds and details 
of investment and advances by the 
subsidiary; 

 Prior recommendation on strategic/ long-
term investments, loans, guarantees, 
acquisitions or disinvestment by 
subsidiary; 

 Noting of minutes of the board meeting 
and; 

 Noting of key internal audit findings. 
 
14. TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKING BY WAY OF 

A SLUMP SALE ON A GOING CONCERN 
BASIS 

 
During the year under review, there was no any 
transfer of undertaking by way of a slump sale on 
a going concern basis. 
 

15. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 
 
The Company confirms that it has paid the 
Annual Listing Fees for the year 2025-2026 to BSE 
Limited, Stock Exchange where the Company’s 
shares are listed. 
 

16. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
for the year under review, as stipulated under the 
SEBI Listing Regulations, is presented in section 
forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL 
As of 31st March, 2025, Company’s Board had Six 
Directors consisting of One Executive Director, One 
Non-Executive Director, Four Independent Directors 
The Board has One Woman Independent Director. The 
details of Board and Committee Composition, Tenure 
of Directors, areas of expertise and other details are 
available in the Corporate Governance Report which 
forms part of this Annual Report. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the 
Act, read with rules made thereunder and Articles of 
Association of the Company. Mr. Prakash Parekh (DIN: 
00158264), Director of the Company is liable to retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
During the year Ms. Khusboo Goyal had been resigned 
as a Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 
Company w.e.f. 20th November, 2024 and Ms. Shweta 
Jhawar had been appointed as a Company Secretary 
and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 27th 
February, 2025. 
 
Other changes in the Directors and KMPs were already 
reported in previous Directors’ Report. 
 
The Board recommends the appointment/re-
appointment of above Directors for your approval. 
Brief details of Directors proposed to be appointed/re-
appointed as required under Regulation 36 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations provided in the Notice of the 
ensuing AGM. 
 

18. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 
All Independent Directors have submitted requisite 
declarations confirming that they (i) continue to meet 
the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 
Listing Regulations and are Independent and (ii) 
continue to comply with the code of conduct laid down 
under Schedule IV of the Act. Details of the same have 
also been provided in the report of Corporate 
Governance, which forms part of this report. 
 
The Directors have further confirmed that they are not 
debarred from holding the office of Director under any 
SEBI order or any other such authority. 
 
 



19. COMMITTEES OF BOARD 
 

As on the date of this report the Board has the 
following Committees: 

 Audit Committee 
 Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee 
 Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee 
 Management Committee 

 
All the recommendations made by the Board 
Committees including the Audit Committee were 
accepted by the Board. 
 

20. NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD 
 
The Board of Directors met 5 (Five) times during 
the year under review. The details of Board 
Meetings and the attendance of the Directors are 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report 
which forms part of this Annual Report. 
 

21. INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING 
 
The Independent Directors met on 12th February, 
2025 without the attendance of Non-Independent 
Directors and Members of the Management. The 
Independent Directors reviewed the performance 
of Non-Independent Directors, the Committees 
and the Board as a whole along with the 
performance of the Chairman of the Company, 
taking into account the view of Executive 
Directors and assessed the quality, quantity, and 
timeliness of flow of information between the 
management and the Board that is necessary for 
the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties. 

22. BOARD EVALUATION 
 
The Board adopted a formal mechanism for 
evaluating its performance and as well as that of 
its Committees and Individual Directors 
including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise 
was carried out through a structured evaluation 
process covering various aspects of the Boards 
functioning such as composition of the Board and 
Committees, experience and competences, 
performance of specific duties and obligations, 
contribution at the meetings and otherwise, 
Independent Judgement, Governance Issues etc. 
 
 

 

 
At the Board Meeting that followed the above 
mentioned meeting of the Independent Directors, the 
performance of the Board, its Committees and 
Individual Directors was also discussed. Performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the 
entire Board, excluding the Independent Directors 
being evaluated. 
 

23. NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND BOARD 
DIVERSITY POLICY 
 
The Board has, on the recommendation of the NRC, 
framed a Nomination, Remuneration and Board 
Diversity Policy ('NRC Policy') for selection, 
appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
Employees and other matters as provided under 
Section 178(3) of the Act read with Part D of Listing 
Regulations. The remuneration paid to the Directors is 
as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is applicable 
to all the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. 
 
The Policy provides guidance on: 
 
1. Selection and Nomination of Directors to the Board 

of the Company; 
2. Appointment of the Senior Management Personnel 

of the Company; and 
3. Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. 
The said policy is available on the website of the 
Company at www.hpbl.in. 
 

24. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
state the following: 
 

a. That in the preparation of the Annual Financial 
Statements, the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures, if any; 

b. That such accounting policies have been selected 
and applied consistently and judgement and 
estimates have been made that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and 
of the loss of the Company for the year ended on 
that date; 
 



 
 

 
 
 

c. That proper and sufficient care has been taken 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d. That the Annual Financial Statements have 
been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 

e. That proper internal financial controls were in 
place and that the financial controls were 
adequate and were operating effectively; 
 

f. That proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws were 
in place and were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

 
25. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 
 
The Company has neither granted any options 
during the financial year 2024-25 under the 
Plastene Group Employee Stock Option Plan-2022 
nor formulated/approved other Employee Stock 
Option Plan. 
 

26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has laid down an adequate system 
of internal controls, policies and procedures for 
ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the 
business including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, safeguards of its assets, prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records and 
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosure. 
 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Board of your Company has adopted Risk 
Management Plan to create and protect 
Shareholder’s value by identifying and mitigating 
major operating and external business risk. 
Currently, the Board is responsible for reviewing 
the risk management plan and ensuring its 
effectiveness. 
 
 

 

The Company recognizes that the emerging and 
identified risks need to be managed and mitigated to (a) 
protect its Shareholders and other Stakeholder’s 
interest (b) achieve its Business Objectives and (c) 
enable Sustainable Growth. 
 
The details of various risks that are being faced by the 
Company are provided in Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report which forms part of this Report. 
 

28. BOARD POLICIES 
 
The details of the policies approved and adopted by the 
Board as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
Regulations are provided in Annexure - B to this 
report. 
 

29. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 
The Company has constituted a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee and framed a CSR 
Policy. The brief details of CSR Committee are 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report which 
forms part of this Annual Report. The updated CSR 
Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
www.hpbl.in. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer of the Company has 
certified that due to loss reported in the immediate 
preceding financial year, the amount towards CSR 
expenditure has not been required to spend for the 
financial year 2024-2025 as per the provision of Section 
135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, your Company 
has not spent any amount towards CSR expenditure in 
view of loss. 
 
The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed to this 
Report as Annexure -C. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

30. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
Company is committed to good Corporate 
Governance practices. The Corporate Governance 
Report, as stipulated by the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, form part of this Annual Report 
along with the required Certificate from Statutory 
Auditors regarding compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance. 
 
In compliance with Corporate Governance 
requirements as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
Company has formulated and implemented a 
code of Business Conduct for all Board Members 
and Senior Management Personnel of the 
Company who have affirmed the compliance 
thereto. The said code of conduct is available on 
the website of the Company at www.hpbl.in. 
 

31. ANNUAL RETURN 
 
Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the draft 
Annual Return as on 31st March, 2025, prepared in 
accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act is made 
available on the website of the Company and can 
be assessed using the link www.hpbl.in. 
 

32. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 
 
As stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Business Responsibility Report describing the 
initiatives taken by the Company from an 
environmental, social and governance perspective 
is not applicable to your Company as per the 
exemptions provided under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 

33. VIGIL MECHANISM 
 

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy which 
lays down the process to convey genuine concerns 
and seek resolution towards the same without 
fear of retaliation.  
 
A detailed update on the functioning of the 
Whistle Blower Policy and weblink of the policy 
has been provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance. 

 
 

 
34. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING 
AND OUTGO 
 
The information on conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with 
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, is provided as Annexure - D of this Report. 
 
 

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 
 
All Contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by 
the Company during the financial year with related 
parties were in its ordinary course of business and on 
an arm’s length basis. The relevant details with regard 
to the Related Party Transactions are provided in 
Annexure - E to this report. 
 
The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions 
and on dealing with Related Party Transactions as 
approved by the Board is available on the Company’s 
website and can be accessed at www.hpbl.in. 
 
During the year under review, the policy on Materiality 
of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with 
Related Party Transactions was amended to align it 
with the amendments in the Listing Regulations. 

 
36. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE 

 
Information required under section 197(12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5(1), 5(2), 5(3) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in Annexure -F to 
this Report. 
 

37. INTERNAL AUDITORS, AUDIT REPORT AND 
COMPLIANCE 
In terms of the provisions of Section 138 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, M/s. BDO India 
LLP was appointed as Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the financial year 2024-25, who regularly 
carries out the Internal Audit of the Company. 
All Audit Reports are regularly placed before the Audit 
Committee at Committees' meetings. After providing 
due explanations, the Company adopts the final 
suggestions and necessary effects are given in 
accounting process and system of the Company. There 
are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks 
or disclaimer made by the Internal Auditors in their 
Reports. 



 
 
 
 

 
38. STATUTORY AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT 
 

M/s. Ashok Dhariwal & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, Ahmedabad (Firm Registration No. 
100648W) were re-appointed as the Statutory 
Auditor of the Company at the 38th AGM held on 
26th September, 2022 to hold the office till the 
conclusion of the 43rd AGM to be held in year 
2027. 
 
The Statutory Auditor’s Report does not contain 
any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or 
observations. 
 

39. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR 
REPORT 
 
M/s. SCS & Co. LLP, Practicing Company 
Secretaries, was appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditor for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2025. The Secretarial Auditor have furnished their 
report annexed as Annexure - G to this report. 
 
Further, in compliance with Regulation 24A of the 
Listing Regulations, the Annual Secretarial 
Compliance Report issued by the Secretarial 
Auditor was submitted to the Stock Exchange(s) 
within the statutory timelines. 
According to the Secretarial Audit Report and the 
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report, the 
following observations were made and 
management responded accordingly. 
 

Observation of Secretarial 
Auditor 

Management Reply 

Clarification from BSE 
regarding significant 
movement in price 

The Company submitted 
the clarification on July 
26, 2024. 

Non-compliance of 
Regulation 23(9) of SEBI 
LODR Regulation as there 
was delay in submission of 
related party transaction 
details for the half year 
ended on September 
30,2024 

The Company gives its 
assurance to ensure 
timely disclosures in the 
future. 

The Company has not 
complied with the 
Regulation 30 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, as the outcome 
of the Board meeting and 
were not submitted within 
the prescribed timeline. 

The Company gives its 
assurance to ensure 
timely disclosures in the 
future and to avoid 
recurrence of such non 
compliance 

 
The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. SCS & Co. LLP, 
Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company for the FY 2024-25. They have 
confirmed their eligibility for the said re-appointment. 

40. COST AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT 
 
Provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company during 
the financial year under review. 
 

41. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING  
 
The Company has adopted a code of prevention of 
Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
Securities by the Directors and the Designated Persons 
of the Company. The code requires pre-clearance for 
dealing in the Company’s Shares and prohibits the 
purchase or sale of Company’s Shares by the Directors 
and Designated Persons while in possession of 
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to 
the Company and during the period when the Trading 
Window is closed. 
 
During the period under review, the Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company has 
given Pre-clearance to the Promoter and Promoter 
Group to sale of Shares/Securities of the Company in 
the Open Market to comply with the Minimum Public 



Shareholding (MPS) requirements as per Rule 19(2) and 
Rule 19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 
1957, Regulation 31 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 
and Regulation 38 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time). 

 
42. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER 

 
There are no significant and material orders 
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status of the 
Company’s operation in future. 
 

43. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 
 
During the year under review, the Statutory 
Auditors and Secretarial Auditor have not 
reported any instances of fraud committed against 
Company by its officers or employees to the Audit 
Committee or the Board under Section 143(12) of 
the Act. 

44. SECRETARIAL STANDARD 
 
During the year under review, Company has 
complied with all the applicable provisions of 
Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretary of 
India. 
 

45. INSURANCE 
 
Company has taken appropriate insurance for all 
assets against foreseeable perils. 
 

46. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 
AT WORKPLACE 

 
As per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
& Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder, Company has constituted Internal 
Complaints Committees (ICs) at all relevant 
locations across India to consider and resolve the 
complaints related to sexual harassment. The ICs 
includes external members with relevant 
experience. The ICs presided by senior women, 
conduct the investigations and make decisions at 
the respective locations. The ICs also work 
extensively on creating awareness on relevance of 
sexual harassment issues, including while 
working remotely. 
 
During the year under review, there were no 
complaints pertaining to sexual harassment. 
 

47. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY 
PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY 
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
 
During the year under review, neither any application 
was made nor any proceedings were pending under 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 

48. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
Your Director place on record their sincere thanks to 
bankers, business associates, consultants, employees 
and various Government Authorities for their 
continued support extended to your Company’s 
activities during the year under review. Your Director 
also acknowledge gratefully the Shareholders for their 
relentless support and confidence reposed on the 
Company. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
 
 

Sd/- 
Anil Goyal  

Chairman 
Date: 25th August, 2025 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
 

 

 



Annexure - A to the Directors’ Report 

Form AOC-1 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures 
(Pursuant to first proviso to Sub-Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Account) 

Rules, 2014) 
 

Part - “A”: Subsidiaries 
 

(Information in respect of each Subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs, except % of 
holding/No. of Shares and Exchange Rate) 

 
1 Name of the Subsidiary  K. P. Woven Private Limited 

2 The date since when Subsidiary was acquired  01st February, 2022 

3 Reporting period for the Subsidiary concerned, 
if different from the Holding Company’s 
reporting period. 

 NA 

4 Reporting Currency and Exchange rate as on 
the last date of the relevant Financial year in the 
case of Foreign Subsidiaries 

 NA 

5 Share capital  35.60 

6 Reserves and Surplus 0 

7 Total Assets 18286.75 

8 Total Liabilities 14244.91 

9 Investments 49.50 

10 Turnover 37889.16 

11 Profit/(Loss) before taxation 1038.37 

12 Provision for taxation 277.07 

13 Profit/(Loss) after taxation 761.30 

14 Proposed Dividend  Nil 

15 Extent of Shareholding (in percentage) 98.45% of total voting rights 
51.33% of total capital 

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: (1) Names of 
subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NA, (2) Names of subsidiaries which have been 
liquidated or sold during the year: NA 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Anil Goyal                                                                                      
Chairman 

DIN: 03071035 
Date: 25th August, 2025                               
Place: Ahmedabad 
  



Part - “B”: Associate and Joint Ventures 
 

Statement Pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures 

 
Name of Associates/Joint Ventures HCP PLASTENE BULKPACK PLT 
1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2025 
2 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture 

was associated or acquired 
October, 2023 

3 Shares of Associate/Joint Venture held by the 
Company on the year-end 

60% 

No. of Shares NA 
Amount of Investment in Associate/Joint 
Venture 

5.50 

Extend of Holding (in percentage) 60% 
4 Description of how there is significant 

influence 
Holding more than 20% of equity share 
capital as per section 2(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

5 Reason why the Associate/Joint Venture is 
not consolidated 

N.A. 

6 Net worth attributable to Shareholding as per 
latest Audited Balance Sheet 

4.73 

7 Profit / Loss for the year -4.31 
Considered in Consolidation Yes, -4.31 
Not Considered in Consolidation NA 

(1) Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NA, (2) Names of 
associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NA. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Anil Goyal                                                                                      
Chairman 

DIN: 03071035 
Date: 25th August, 2025                               
Place: Ahmedabad 

 



Annexure - B to the Directors’ Report 
 

Board Policies 
 

Name of Policies Legislation Weblink 
Vigil Mechanism/ 
Whistle Blower Policy 

Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations and as defined 
under Section 177 of the Act. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Code of Practices and 
Procedures for Fair 
disclosure of 
unpublished price 
sensitive information 

Regulation 8 of SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Familiarization 
Programme for 
Independent Directors 

Regulations 25(7) and 46 of SEBI 
Listing Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Related Party 
Transactions 

Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations and as defined 
under the Act. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Policy on Material 
Subsidiaries 

Regulation 24 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Policy for Determination 
of Materiality 

Regulation 30 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Archival Policy SEBI Listing Regulations. https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Policy on Preservation of 
Documents 

Regulation 9 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy 

Section 135 of the Act. https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Terms & Conditions of 
Appointment of 
Independent Directors 

Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations and Section 149 
read with Schedule IV to the 
Act. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Dividend Distribution 
Policy 

Regulation 43A of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Code of Conduct Regulation 17 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

Board Diversity Policy Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

https://hpbl.in/investors/#policies  

 

  



Annexure - C to the Directors’ Report 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013] 
 

BRIEF OF THE COMPANY’S CSR POLICY: 
The main objective of CSR policy is to make CSR a key 
business process for sustainable development of the 
society and economy in which we operate by 
conducting business which enables creation and 
distribution of wealth for the betterment of local 
population, its stakeholders and society at large, 
through implementation and integration of ethical 
systems and sustainable management practices. 
 
 

THE COMPOSITION OF THE CSR COMMITTEE: 
 
The CSR committee of the Board is responsible for inter 
alia overseeing the execution of the Company’s CSR 
policy. 
 
The composition of the CSR Committee of the 
Company as on 31st March, 2025 was: 
 

 

WEB-LINKS: 
 
Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR 
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the board are disclosed on the website of the Company: 
https://hpbl.in/investors/#our-policy 
 
 

DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR 
PROJECTS CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF 
SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES 
(CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE (ATTACH 
THE REPORT): Not Applicable 
 

DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF 
RULE 7 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014 
AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director 
(and designation in 

relation to membership 
of the committee) 

Nature of directorship 
(Executive / Non-executive/ 

Independent / Non-
independent) 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year 

1 Ms. Meenu  
Maheshwari – 
Chairperson 

Non-Executive and 
Independent 

 
 
 
2 

2 

2 Mr. Sandeep Shah – 
Member  

Non-Executive and 
Independent 

2 

3 Mr. Anil Goyal – 
Member 

Non-Executive and Non-
Independent 

1 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
the 

Project 

Item 
from the 

list of 
activities 

in 
schedule 

VII to 
the Act 

Local 
area 

(Yes/ 
No) 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount 
spent 

for the 
project 
(in Rs.) 

Mode of 
implem 
entation 
-Direct 

(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
implementation - 

Through 
implementing 

agency 
State Dist. Name CSR 

registration 
number 

1 NA 



SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: Not 
Applicable 
AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY FOR 
LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS (Section 135(5)): 
 
• Rs. (107.98) Lakh 
 
PRESCRIBED CSR EXPENDITURE (2% of Average 
Net Profit): 
 
• Nil 
 
DETAILS OF CSR SPENT DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 
• (a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: 
Nil 
• (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities of the previous financial 
years: NA 
• (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial 
year, if any: NA 
• (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (a+b-
c): Nil 
• Total amount spent during the financial year: Nil 
• Amount unspent: Nil 
 
Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing 
projects for the financial year: NA 
 
Details of CSR amount spent against other than 
ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil 
 
Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 
Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: 
NA 
Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Nil 
Excess amount for set off, if any: NA 
 

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding 
three financial years: Not Applicable 
Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year 
for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s): Nil 
 
In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, the 
details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year 
 
No creation or acquisition of capital asset during the 
current financial year. 
 
Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to 
spend two percent of the average net profit as per 
Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013: Not 
Applicable 
 
 
Date: 25th 
August, 2025 
 
Place:  
Ahmedabad 

For HCP Plastene Bulkpack 
Ltd.  

 
Sd/                                      Sd/-    
Anil Goyal Meenu Maheshwari  
Chairman  Chairperson of CSR 
                      Committee 
            

 
 

 
 

 

  



ANNEXURE - F to the Directors’ Report 
 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULES 5(1), 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 
 
A. Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

Company for the year 2024-2025 and the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, 
Chief Financial Officer, and Company Secretary during the year 2024-2025 are as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation Ration of 
Remuneration of 
Director to Median 
Remuneration of 
employees 

% increase in 
Remuneration in 
the Year 2024-2025 

 Executive Directors 
1 Prakash Parekh  Managing Director N.A. N.A. 

 Non-Executive Directors 
2 Mr. Anil Goyal* 

 
Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director 

N.A. N.A. 

3 Ms. Meenu 
Maheshwari 

Independent Director N.A N.A 

4 Mr. Sandeep Shah  Independent Director N.A. N.A. 
5 Mr. Ashutosh 

Maheshwari  
Independent Director N.A. N.A. 

6 Mr. Ranjeet Mal 
Kastia  

Independent Director N.A. N.A. 

 Key Managerial Personnel 
7 Ms. Khusboo Goyal 

(resigned on 20th 
November, 2024) 

Company Secretary 
and Compliance 
Officer 

N.A N.A 

8 Ms. Shweta Jhawar 
(Appointed w.e.f.  
27th February, 2025) 

Company Secretary 
and Compliance 
Officer 

  

11 Mr. Dhrumil Shah  CFO N.A N.A 
 
* During the year under review we have paid remuneration to Non-Executive Independent 
Directors by way of sitting fees and there is no such increase in that. 

B. The Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 5.94% 
C. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31st March, 2025: 110 
D. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 3.64 

E. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
F. Statement of particulars of employees pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2024.  

Top 10 employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year: 



Name of Employee Designation Remuneration 
received 

Qualifications Percentage of 
equity shares 
held by the 
employee 

Jagdeep Singh Rana Vice President 1782000 BSC+PG in plastic 
Eng from Capet 

0 

Praful k Agrawal Commercial Head 906000 BCA 0 

Prabhakar Pankaj 
Kumar Singh 

Quality Manager 648000 BSC 0 

Sanjay Kalra HR Manager 594000 LLB 0 

Ashok Bhongade Loom Maintenance 
Head 

576000 B.A. 0 

Nehpal singh 
Chauhan 

Block Bottom AD* 
kon Operator 

588000 10 Pass 0 

Kalubhai prajapati Tape plant Incharg 546000 ITI 0 

Ratikanta rout Label Incharge 541200 10 Pass 0 

Anand Pandey ASS. Electrical 
Manager 

504000 Diploma Electrical 0 

Pawan Kumar Block Bottom AD* 
kon Operator 

500400 10 Pass 0 

G. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act 2013 
read with Rule 5 (2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 with reference to remuneration of employees in excess of the limits 
prescribed-None of the employees were in receipt of remuneration above Rupees Eight Lakh Fifty 
thousand per month or Rupees One Crore Two Lakhs Per annum and above. 
 

H. Details of employees, if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of 
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the 
aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or manager 
and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent 
of the equity shares of the company. – Nil 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Anil Goyal                                                                                      
Chairman 

DIN: 03071035 
Date: 25th August, 2025                               
Place: Ahmedabad     

            



ANNEXURE - G to the Directors’ Report 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 
The Members,  
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
H.B. Jirawala House,  
Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand,  
Usmanpura, Ahmedabad-13  
 
 
 We have conducted the secretarial audit of the 
compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited (CIN: 
L25200GJ1984PLC050560) (here-in-after called 
“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s 
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (“the 
audit period”) complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the 
provisions of:  

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and 
the rules made there under;  
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) 
Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
there under; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations 
and Bye-laws Framed there under;  

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and 
the rules and regulations made thereunder to 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas 
Direct Investment and External Commercial 
borrowings. ; (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period);  

 
v. The following Regulations and Guidelines 

prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (to the extent 
applicable);  

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015;  

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021;  

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit Period);  

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client;  

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 
(Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period); 



h) The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Buy-back of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period);  

 
vi. The Company has identified following 

laws applicable specifically to the 
Company:  
1. The Shop & Establishment Act, 1954 

and rules  
2. The Factories Act, 1948  
3. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009  
4. The Food Safety and Standards Act 

2006  
5. The Standards of Weights and 

Measures Act, 1985  
6. Local/Municipality Laws  

 
We have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the following: 
 

(i) The Secretarial Standards issued by 
The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India on the meetings 
of the Board of Directors and general 
meetings.  

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015  

 
We have not examined compliance by the 
Company with applicable financial laws, like 
direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have 
been subject to review by statutory financial 
audit and other designated professionals. 
 
During the period under review the Company 
has generally complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned above, except for the following 
points to consider:  

1. Some e-forms have been delayed filed by 
the Company with the Registrar of 
Companies,  

2. Delay in submission of outcome of 
Board Meeting held on November 14, 
2024.  

3. Delay in submission of outcome of 
Board Meeting held on February 14, 
2025.  

4. Delay in submission of related Party 
transaction under Regulation 23(9) of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for the 
half year ended on September 30, 2024  

 

5. The Exchange has sought clarification from the 
Company on July 25, 2024 with reference to 
significant movement in price, in order to ensure that 
investors have latest relevant information about the 
company and to inform the market so that the 
interest of the investors is safeguarded.  

 
We further report that:  
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting.  
 
As per the Minutes of the meetings duly recorded and 
signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board and 
Committees thereof were carried through with requisite 
majority.  
 
We further report that based on the review of the 
compliance reports/certificates of the Company 
Secretary which were taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.  
 
We further report that during the audit period, there was 
no event / action having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred 
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 
 
Note: This report is based on information, documents, 
and material etc., seen/verified/made available to us. 
Further, this report is to be read with our letter of even 
date which is annexed as ‘Annexure -1’ and forms an 
integral part of this report.  
 

 



For SCS AND CO. LLP  
Practicing Company Secretaries  
 

CS Abhishek Chhajed  
Partner  
FCS: 11334 COP: 15131  
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700  
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022  
 

Dated: 25/08/2025  
Place: Ahmedabad  
UDIN: F011334G001072625 
 

“Annexure-A” 
To, 
The Members,  
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
H.B. Jirawala House,  
Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand,  
Usmanpura, Ahmedabad-13 
Our report of even date is to be read along with 
this letter. 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the 

responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on 
our audit. 

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and 

process as considered appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification as done on test basis is to 
reasonably ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. In respect of laws, rules and regulations other 

than those specifically mentioned in our 
report above, we have limited our review, 
analysis and reporting up to process and 
system adopted by the Company for 
compliance with the same and have not  

verified detailed compliance, submissions, 
reporting under such laws etc. nor verified 
correctness and appropriateness thereof 
including financial records and books of accounts 
of the Company. 
 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the 

Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of 
Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 
 

6. Due to the inherent limitations of an audit 
including internal, financial, and operating 
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that 
some misstatements or material non-
compliances may not be detected, even 
though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with audit 
practices. 
 

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an 
assurance as to compliance in totality or the 
future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 

 
For SCS AND CO. LLP  
Practicing Company Secretaries  
 

CS Abhishek Chhajed  
Partner  
FCS: 11334 COP: 15131  
ICSI Unique Code: - L2020GJ008700  
Peer Review Number: - 1677/2022 

Dated: 25/08/2025  
Place: Ahmedabad  
UDIN: F011334G001072625 
 

 





Corporate Governance Report 
 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE 

 
Effective Corporate Governance practices constitute 
the strong foundation on which successful 
commercial enterprises are built to last. Corporate 
Governance is based on the principles of integrity, 
transparency, accountability and commitment to 
values. Company’s views are not only to comply 
with the statutory requirements in letter and spirit 
but also to aim at implementing the best practices, 
keeping in view the overall interest of all its 
Stakeholders. Your Company takes Corporate 
Governance as a critical tool to enhance trust of its 
Customers, Employees, Investors, Government and 
the Community at large and achieve its goal of 
maximizing value for its Stakeholders. The 
Company has adopted a code of conduct for Board 
Members and Senior Management. 
 
Ethical dealings, transparency, integrity, fairness, 
disclosure and accountability are the main thrust of 
the working of the Company. 
 
The Company further believes that the concept of 
Corporate Governance is founded upon the core 
values of transparency, empowerment, 
accountability, independent monitoring and 
environmental consciousness. The Company has 
always given its best efforts to upload and nurture 
these core values across all operational aspects. 

The Company continuously follows the procedure of 
Corporate Governance for ensuring and protecting 
the rights of its Shareholders by means of 
transparency, integrity, accountability, trusteeship 
and checks at the different levels of the 
management of the Company. 

  
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Board of Company has an optimum 
combination of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Independent Directors and Woman Director with 
conformity of Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 as well as the Companies act, 
2013 read with rules framed thereunder, to 
maintain the Independence of Board and Separate 
its functions of Management and Governance in 
transparent manner. 
 
None of the Directors on the Board is a member of 
more than ten Committees or Chairman of more 
than five Committees (Committees being Audit 
Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee as per Regulation 26(1) of the Listing 
Regulations) across all the Public Companies in 
which he/she is a Director. The necessary 
disclosures regarding their Committee positions 
have been made by all the Directors. 
 

 
a. Composition of the Board 

 
Sr No Name of the Director Category 
1 Mr. Anil Goyal Non-Executive Director/ Chairman 
2 Mr. Prakash Parekh Executive Director/ Promoter/ Managing 

Director 
3 *Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari 

(upto 16.06.2025) 
Non-Executive / 
Independent Director 

4 Mr. Sandeep Shah Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

5 Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

6 Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

7 Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh 
(w.e.f.  12.08.2025)** 

Additional Director (Executive) 

 
* Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari, Non- Executive Independent Director has tendered his 
resignation on 16th June, 2025.  
 



**Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh, wholetime Director appointed as Additional Director 
(Executive) w.e.f. 12.08.2025 
As per the declarations received from the Directors, none of the Director is disqualified 
under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2025 is as under: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Profile of the Directors is available on the website of the Company at www.hpbl.in  
 

b. The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and at the last year’s 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2024 are as under: 
Name of Director(s) No of Meetings Attendance 

at last AGM 
% of 

attendance 

Held 
attendance 
during their 

tenure 

Attended 

Mr. Anil Goyal  5 5 Yes 83.33 
Mr. Prakash Parekh 5 5 Yes 100.00 
Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari  5 4 Yes 66.67 
Mr. Sandeep Shah 5 5 Yes 100.00 
Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari 5 5 Yes 100.00 
Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia 5 5 NA 100.00 

 
 

c. The Number of other Boards or Committee in which Director is a Chairman or 
Member including names of the Listed Companies where Directors are holding 
Directorship with category of Directorship as on 31st March, 2025 is as follow: 
 
Name and 
Designation 
(DIN) of Director 

No of 
Directors
hip in 
other 
Public 
Compani
es  

No of Committee 
position held in other 

public Companies 
Board Committees 

(other than HPBL) in 
which 

Chairman/Member. 

Name of 
other Listed 
entities in 
which the 
concern 

Director is a 
Director 

Category of 
Directorship 

Chairman Member 

16.67

16.67
66.66

Board Composition

Executive Director

Non Executive- Non Independent Director

Non Executive Independent Director



Mr. Anil Goyal, 
Chairman, (DIN: 
03071035) 

1 0 0 Nil NA 

Mr. Prakash Parekh, 
Managing Director, 
(DIN: 00158264) 

2 0 0 Nil NA 

Mr. Ashutosh 
Maheshvari, 
Director, (DIN: 
00001582) 

1 0 0 Nil NA 

Mr. Sandeep Shah, 
Director, (DIN: 
01850151) 

4 2 5 Jyoti Resins 
and Adhesives 
Limited 

Non- 
Executive & 
Independent 
Director 

Global Longlife 
Hospital and 
Research 
Limited 

Non- 
Executive & 
Independent 
Director 

Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari, 
Director, (DIN: 
07113136) 

3 0 3 Krishna Capital 
and Securities 
Limited 

Non- 
Executive & 
Independent 
Director 

Mr. Ranjeet Mal 
Kastia, Director, 
(DIN: 00053059) 

2 0 1 HFCL Limited Non-
Executive & 
Non-
Independent 
Director 

 
Notes: 
1. The Directorship held by the Directors 

as mentioned above excludes Alternate 
Directorship, Directorship in Foreign 
Companies, Companies under Section 8 
of the Act and Private Limited 
Companies which are not the 
Subsidiaries of Public Limited 
Companies. 
 

2. Number of Committee position held as 
a Chairman and Member consist of two 
Committees viz. Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
as per Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations. 

 
d. Number of Meetings of the Board of 

Directors held and Dates on which 
held 

The Board met 5 (Five) times during the 
Financial Year 2024-2025 and the time gap 
between two meeting was not more than 
120 days. The Board Meeting were held on 

e. Disclosure of Relationship between 
Directors Inter-Se 

 
None of the Directors of the Company was related 
to each other. 
 
f. Number of Shares and Convertible 

instruments held by Non-Executive 
Directors 

 
None of the Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company is holding Shares or Convertible 
instruments in the Company. 
 
g. Familiarisation Programme and Web link 

where details of familiarisation 
Programmes imparted to Independent 
Directors is disclosed 

In Compliance with Regulation 25(7) of the Listing 
Regulations, your Company has put the structure 
of familiarisation Programme for all its 
Independent Directors, to inform about a brief 
background of the Company, their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 



i.e. 21st May, 2024, 10th August, 2024, 14th 
November, 2024, 14th February, 2025 and 
27th February, 2025.  
 

industry in which the Company operates, business 
model, operations of the Company etc.  

Periodic presentations are made to the 
Board on business and performance of the 
Company. 
 
The details of such familiarisation 
programmes for Independent Directors of 
the Company are posted on the website of 
the Company and it can be accessed by 
this link: www.hpbl.in. 
 

h. A chart/matrix relating to 
skills/expertise/ competence of the Board 
of Directors 

 
The following is the list of core skills/competencies 
identified by the Board of Directors as required in 
the context of the Company’s business and that the 
said skills are available within the Board Members: 

 

 
Area Particulars 
Plastic Packaging  Experience in the plastic packaging sector 
Business Leadership Leadership experience including in areas of business 

development, strategic planning, succession planning, driving 
change and long-term growth and guiding the Company and its 
Senior Management towards its vision and values 

Financial Expertise Knowledge and skills in accounting, finance, treasury 
management, tax and financial management of large 
corporations with understanding of capital allocation, funding and 
financial reporting processes. 

Risk Management Ability to understand and assess the key risks to the organization, 
legal compliances and ensure that appropriate policies and 
procedures are in place to effectively manage risk. 

Global Experience Global mindset and staying updated on global market 
opportunities, competition experience in driving business success 
around the world with an understanding of diverse business 
environments, economic conditions and regulatory frameworks. 

Merger & Acquisition Ability to assess build or buy & timing of decisions, analyze the fit 
of a target with the Company’s strategy and evaluate operational 
integration plans 

Corporate Governance 
& ESG 

Experience in implementing good corporate governance 
practices, reviewing compliance and governance practices for a 
sustainable growth of the Company and protecting Stakeholders’ 
interest. 

Technology & 
Innovations 

Experience or knowledge of emerging areas of technology such 
as digital, artificial intelligence, cyber security, data centre, data 
security etc. 

  
In the table below, the specific area of focus of expertise of Individual Board Members 
have been highlighted. 
 
Name of Director Special Skills 
Mr. Anil Goyal  Plastic Packaging, Business Leadership, Financial Expertise, 

Risk Management, Global Experience, Corporate 
Governance & ESG, Technology & Innovations. 

Mr. Prakash Parekh,  Plastic Packaging, Business Leadership, Financial Expertise, 
Risk Management, Global Experience, Corporate 



Governance & ESG, Merger & Acquisition, Technology & 
Innovations. 

Mr. Ashutosh 
Maheshvari  

Business Leadership, Financial Expertise, Risk Management, 
Global Experience, Governance & ESG, Merger & Acquisition. 

Mr. Sandeep Shah, 
Director 

Business Leadership, Financial Expertise, Risk Management, 
Governance & ESG. 

Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari,  Business Leadership, Financial Expertise, Risk Management, 
Governance & ESG. 

Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia Business Leadership, Financial Expertise, Risk Management, 
Global Experience, Governance & ESG. 

 
Note - Each Director may possess varied combinations of skills/ expertise within the 
described set of parameters and it is not necessary that all Directors possess all skills/ 
expertise listed therein. 
 

i. Confirmation of Independence 
 
The Board confirms that all the Independent 
Directors fulfil the conditions specified in Listing 
Regulations and that they are Independent from 
the Management. 
 
j. Reason of resignation of Independent 

Director who resigns before the expiry 
of the term. 

 
During the Financial Year, no Independent 
Director resigned before the expiry of the terms. 
Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari has resigned before 
the expiry of his tenure due to some personal 
and unavoidable reasons on 16th June, 2025. 
Hence, He ceased to be a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company with 
effect from 16th June, 2025. 
 
k. Code of conduct 
 
Company has framed code of conduct for Board 
of Directors and Senior Management of the 
Company which is available on the Company’s 
website at www.hpbl.in which includes Code of 
Conduct for Independent Directors which 
suitably incorporates the duties of Independent 
Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 
2013 (“Act”) as well as Listing Regulations and 
Senior Management to provide guidance and 
help in recognizing and dealing with ethical 
issues, provide mechanisms to report unethical 
conduct and to help promote a culture of 
honesty. 
In respect of Financial Year 2024-2025, all Board 
Members and Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company have affirmed. 

compliance with the code as applicable to them 
and a declaration to this effect signed by the 
Managing Director is attached as “Annexure-
B” at the end of Corporate Governance Report. 
l. Information supplied to the Board of 

Directors 
During the Financial Year 2024-2025, all 
necessary information as required under the 
applicable provisions of the Act, Listing 
Regulations and other applicable laws and rules 
were placed and discussed at the Board Meeting. 
Further, the dates of Board and Committee 
Meetings were communicated to the Directors 
and Committee Members respectively well in 
advance in compliance with various provisions of 
Law. Members were given agenda in detail along 
with necessary documents and information in 
advance of each Meeting of the Board and 
Committee(s) by e-mail/ Physical as well as in 
meeting itself also except Price Sensitive 
Information which was available in meeting only. 
The Board periodically reviews compliance 
reports with respect to laws and regulations 
available to the Company. The Board has made 
available complete information as enumerated 
in Part A of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations 
as well as other information as required by 
them. The Board Members may bring up any 
matter for consideration of the Board in 
consultation with the Chairman. The meetings of 
the Board and Committees are generally held at 
Corporate Office of the Company. 
m. Independent Directors 
Company is in compliance with the provisions of 
Section 149, 152, Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rules framed thereunder and the 
Listing Regulations. Mr. Sandeep Shah, Mr. 
Ashutosh Maheshvari, Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari 
and Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia are the Independent 
Directors of the Company and they are not liable 
to retire by rotation. 



 
 
 

Further the Independent Directors have 
confirmed that they are not crossing limit of 
Chairmanship or Membership holding in Audit 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee and Compliances as mentioned in 
Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations. 
 
None of the Independent Directors of Company 
serve as Independent Directors in more than 7 
Listed entities and in case they are Whole-time 
Directors or Managing Director in any Listed 
entity, then he/she does not serve as an 
Independent Director in more than 3 Listed 
entities as per Regulation 17A of the Listing 
Regulations. 
 
n. Formal letter of appointment to the 

Independent Director 
 
The Company has issued formal letter of 
appointment to all the Independent Directors on 
their appointment explaining inter-alia, their 
roles, responsibilities, code of conduct, functions 
and duties as Directors of the Company. The 
terms and conditions of appointment of 
Independent Directors have been hosted on the 
website of the Company and can be assessed at 
www.hpbl.in. 
 
o. Separate Meeting of Independent 

Directors 
Pursuant to provisions of Schedule IV of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 25(3) 
of the Listing Regulations, a separate meeting of 
Independent Directors was held on 12th 
February, 2025 inter alia, for the following 
purposes: 

i. Review of the Performance of the 
Chairperson of the Company by taking 
into account the views of Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors; 

ii. Review and assess the quality, quantity 
and timeliness of flow of information 
between the Company Management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board 
to effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties; 

iii. Review of the Performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as 
a whole; 

Except Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari, All the 
Independent Directors were present in the 
meeting held on 12th February, 2025. 

 

 
p. Non-Executive Directors compensation 

and disclosures 
 
Company has not paid any fees/compensation 
to Independent Directors except sitting fees 
within limit as specified under the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under 
for Board Meetings and Committee Meetings 
attended by them. There was no pecuniary 
relationship or transaction of Non-Executive 
Directors vis-à-vis the Company. 
 
BOARD COMMITTEE 
In compliance with the various provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed 
thereunder, the Listing Regulations and other 
applicable law, Company has constituted (1) 
Audit Committee (2) Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee (3) Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee (4) Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee (5) Management 
Committee. 
The minutes of Committee meetings are tabled 
at the next Board Meeting for their review, 
consideration, noting and doing needful. The 
minutes of the proceedings of the Committee 
Meetings are captured in the same manner as 
the Board Meetings and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rules framed thereunder and as per Secretarial 
Standard-1. 

 3. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
(a) Brief description of terms of 

references: 
Company has constituted a qualified and 
Independent Audit Committee in line with 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rules framed 
thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing 
Regulations. As on 31st March, 2025, Audit 
committee comprises 4 (four) members out 
of which 3 (three) are Non-Executive 
Independent Director and 1 (one) is Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director.  
The Audit Committee Meetings were 
attended by Statutory Auditor, Internal 
Auditor and Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company. The minutes of the meetings of 
the Committee are placed before the Board 
for noting. Ms. Shweta Jhawar, Company 
Secretary & Compliance officer, function as 
a Secretary of the Committee. 



 
 

 
Role and Terms of Reference 
 
The Role and terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee are in compliance with the 
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed there 
under and Listing Regulations. 
 
The Brief description of role and terms of 
reference of Audit Committee is as under: 
 
1. Oversight of the listed entity’s financial 

reporting process and the disclosure of 
its financial information ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient 
and credible. 

2. Recommendation for appointment, 
remuneration and terms of 
appointment of auditors of the listed 
entity; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory 
auditor for any other services rendered 
by the statutory auditor; 

4. Reviewing with the Management, the 
annual financial statements and 
auditors’ report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, 
with particular reference to: 
a) Matters required to be included in 

the Directors’ responsibilities 
statement to be included in the 
Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) 
of sub-section (3) of section 134 of 
the Companies Act, 2013; 

b) Changes, if any, in accounting 
policies and practices and reasons 
for the same; 

c) Major accounting entries involving 
estimates based on the exercise of 
judgement by Management; 

d) Significant adjustments made in the 
financial statement arising  out of 
the audit  findings; 

e) Compliance with listing and other 
legal requirements relating to 
financial statement; 

f) Disclosure of any related party 
transactions; 

g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit 
report; 
 

 

5. Reviewing with the Management, the 
quarterly financial statements before 
submission to the Board for approval; 

6. Reviewing with the Management, the 
statement of uses/ application of funds 
raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the 
statement of funds utilized for purposes 
other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / notice and the 
report submitted by the monitoring 
agency monitoring the utilization of 
proceeds of a public issue or rights issue 
or preferential issue or qualified 
institutions placement, and making 
appropriate recommendations to the 
Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 
independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification 
of transactions of the listed entity with 
related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of Inter-Corporate Loans and 
Investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the 
listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls 
and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing with the Management, 
performance of statutory and internal 
auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 
function, if any, including the structure of 
the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the 
department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any 
significant findings and follow up there 
on; 

15.Reviewing the findings of any internal 
investigations by the internal 
auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a 
failure of internal control systems of 
a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the Board; 

16.Discussion with statutory auditors 
before the audit commences about 
the nature and scope of audit as well 



as post-audit discussion to ascertain 
any area of concern; 
 

 
17. To look into the reasons for substantial 

defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends and 
creditors; 

18.To review the functioning of the whistle 
blower mechanism; 

19.Approval of appointment of Chief 
Financial Officer after assessing the 
qualifications, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate; 

20.The Audit Committee is mandatorily 
reviewing the following information: 

1. management discussion and analysis 
of financial condition and results of 
operations; 

2. management letters/ letters of 
internal control weaknesses issued by 
the statutory auditors; 

3. internal audit reports relating to 
internal control weaknesses; and 

4. the appointment, removal and terms 
of remuneration of the chief internal 
auditor shall be subject to review by 
the Audit Committee. 

5. statement of deviations: 
a. quarterly statement of deviation(s) 

including report of monitoring 
agency, if applicable, submitted to 
Stock Exchange(s) in terms of 
Regulation 32(1). 

b. annual statement of funds utilized 
for purposes other than those 
stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in 
terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 
21.Reviewing and considering the following 

with respect to appointment of auditor 
before recommending to the Board: 
 

a. Qualification and experience of the 
Individual/ Firm proposed to be 
considered for appointment as 
auditor; 

b. Whether such qualifications and 
experience are commensurate with 

c. Giving due regard to any order or 
pending proceeding relating to 
professional matters of conduct against 
the proposed auditor before the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India or any competent authority or 
any court. 

 
22.Review and comment upon the report 

made by the statutory auditors before 
submission to the Central Government 
with regard to any offence involving 
fraud committed against the Company 
by its officers/ employees. 

23.Recommending to the Board of 
Directors, the appointment, 
remuneration and term of appointment 
of Cost Auditor for the Company; 

24.Review the cost audit report submitted 
by the Cost Auditor on audit of cost 
records before submission to the Board 
for approval; 

25.Appointing registered valuers and 
defining the terms and conditions for 
conducting the valuation of assets/net 
worth/ liabilities of the Company. 

26.Reviewing the valuation report and 
follow-up thereon; 

27.Review and approve policy formulated 
for determination of Material 
Subsidiaries; 

28.Review and approve policy on materiality 
of Related Party Transactions and also 
dealing with Related Party Transactions; 

29.reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or 
advances from/investment by the 
Holding Company in the Subsidiary 
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of 
the asset size of the subsidiary, 
whichever is lower including existing 
loans / advances / investments existing 
as on the date of coming into force of this 
provision. 

30. To consider and comment on rationale, 
cost-benefits and impact of schemes 
involving merger, demerger, 
amalgamation etc., on the Company and 
its Shareholders; and 



the size and requirements of the 
Company and  
 

 

 
 
 
 

31.To carry out the functions as 
mentioned under the SEBI 
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

32.Carrying out any other function as 
may be statutorily required to be 
carried out by the Audit Committee; 

33.Carrying out any other function as 
may be referred to the Committee by 
the Board. 

(b) Composition of the Committee, 
Name of Chairperson & Members 
and Attendance at the Meetings: 

 
The Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times 
during the Financial Year 2024-2025 and 
the time gap between two meetings was not 
more than 120 days. The Meetings were 
held on 21st May, 2024, 10th August, 2024, 
14th November, 2024 and 12th February, 
2025. 

 
Name of 

the 
Director 

Designation Nature of Directorship Audit Committee Meeting 
details 

Held during 
their tenure 

Attended 

Mr. Sandeep 
Shah 

Chairperson Non-Executive/ Independent 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Ashutosh 
Maheshvari 

Member Non-Executive/ Independent 
Director 

4 4 

Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari  

Member Non-Executive/ Independent 
Director 

4 4 

Mr. Anil 
Goyal  

Member Non-Executive/ Non-Independent 
Director 

4 4 

 
All the members of the Committee are well-
versed in matters relating to finance, accounts 
and general management practices. The CFO, 
Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor regularly 
attend the meeting of the Audit Committee as 
permanent invitees. Other invitees are invited on 
need basis to brief the Audit Committee on 
important matters. 
 4.NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 
COMMITTEE 

 
(a) Brief description of terms of reference: 

 
Company has framed qualified Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as per the 
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder and 
Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
as on 31st March, 2025, comprises 3 (Three) 
Members out of which 2 (Two) are Non-
Executive-Independent Directors and 1 (one) is 
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. Ms. 
Shweta Jhawar, Company Secretary & 

Terms of Reference 
 

The terms of reference of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee inter alia, includes the 
following: 
 

1. To formulate and review the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes 
and Independence of a Director; 

2. To recommend to the Board of Directors a 
policy relating to the remuneration of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees and to ensure compliance with the 
remuneration policy set forth by the Company; 

3. To formulate criteria for evaluation of 
performance of Independent Directors and the 
Board of Directors; 

4. To devise a policy on Board diversity; 
5. To report on the systems and on the amount 

of the annual remuneration of Directors and 
Senior Management; 

6. To identifying persons who are qualified to 
become Directors and who may be appointed 
in Senior Management in accordance with the 



Compliance Officer acts as a Secretary of the 
Committee. 

 
 

criteria laid down and recommend to the Board 
of Directors their appointment and removal; 

 

7. To recommend to the Board, all remuneration 
in whatever form, payable to Senior 
Management; 

8. To decide whether to extend or continue the 
term of appointment of the Independent 
Director, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of Independent 
Directors and recommend to the Board; 

9. To specify the manner for effective evaluation 
of performance of Board, its Committees and 
Individual Directors and review its 
implementation and compliance; 
 

 
 
 

10. To carry out such other works as may be 
defined by the Board of Directors under the 
framework of Listing Regulations and 
Companies act, 2013, as amended from time 
to time. 

(b) Composition of the Committee, Name 
of Chairperson & Members and attendance 
at the Meetings: 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
met 3 (Three) times during the Financial Year 
2024-2025 and the time gap between two 
meetings was not more than 120 days. The 
Meetings were held on 21st May, 2024, 10th 
August, 2024 and 14th November, 2024 

 

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship Committee Meeting 
details 

Held during 
their tenure 

Attended 

Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari  Chairperson Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

3 3 

Mr. Anil Goyal  Member Non-Executive/ Non-
Independent Director 

3 3 

Mr. Sandeep Shah Member Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

3 3 

(c) Performance evaluation criteria for 
Independent Directors 
As per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
of the Company, the performance evaluation of 
Independent Directors is carried out on the basis 
of prescribed criteria including participation and 
contribution by every Director in the meeting, 
commitment, effective deployment of knowledge 
and expertise, effective management, 
relationship with stakeholders, integrity and 
maintenance of confidentiality, professional 
conduct and Independence,  willingness to 
devote sufficient time to carry out the duties and 
responsibilities effectively including attendance 
at meetings, act in the best interest of minority 
Shareholders of the Company etc. 
 
5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP 
COMMITTEE 
In compliance with provisions of Section 178(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 
framed thereunder and Regulation 20 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

As per Regulation 20(4) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, following are the Role of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee specified 
under Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015: 
1. To consider and resolve the grievance of 

Shareholders and other security holders, if 
any, including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt 
of annual report, non-receipt of declared 
dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, 
general meetings etc. 

2. Review of measures taken for effective 
exercise of voting rights by Shareholders. 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards 
adopted by the listed entity in respect of 
various services being rendered by the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

4. Review of the various measures and 
initiatives taken by the listed entity for 
reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends 



Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Company has 
duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee. 
 
 

and ensuring  timely receipt of dividend 
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by 
the Shareholders of the Company 

 

5. To oversees the performance of the 
Registrar & Transfer Agent and recommends 
measures for overall improvement in the 
quality of investor services; 

6. Issue of new/ duplicate / split / consolidated 
certificate; 

7. To review cases for transfer / transmission 
of shares, debentures and other securities; 

8. To make reference to statutory and 
regulatory authorities regarding investor 
grievances and to otherwise ensure proper 
and timely attendance and redressal of 
investor queries and grievances; 

9. Review of movements in shareholding and 
ownership structures of the Company; 

10. Conduct a Shareholder Satisfaction Survey 
to judge the level of satisfaction amongst 
Shareholders. Suggest and drive 
implementation of various investor-friendly 
initiatives; 

11. Any other roles, powers and functions as 
mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rules framed thereunder and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 
(a) Name of the Non-Executive Director 
heading 
 

Mr. Anil Goyal, Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director is heading the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of 
the Company. 
 

(b) Name and Designation of the 
Compliance Officer 
 

Ms. Khusboo Goyal, Company Secretary 
was the Compliance Officer for complying 
with the requirements of Securities laws 
and the Listing Regulations upto 20th 
November, 2024 as he has resigned from 
the office w.e.f. 20th November, 2024. 
 
Ms. Shweta Jhawar, Company Secretary 
is the Compliance Officer for complying 
with the requirements of Securities laws 
and the Listing Regulations from 27th 
February, 2025 as she has been 
appointed as Company Secretary of the 
Company w.e.f. 27th February, 2025. 
 

 

(c) Number of Shareholders’ complaints 
received during the Financial Year 
During the Financial Year 2024-25, No 
complaint was received from the 
Shareholders.  
 

(d) Number of complaints not solved to 
the satisfaction of Shareholders 
All the complaints received during the year are 
resolved. 
(e) Number of pending complaints 

There is no such pendency of complaints. 
 

5B. SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 

Name  Designation 
Mr. Prakash 
Parekh 

Managing Director 

Mr. Dhrumil 
Shah 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

Mr. Anil Goyal Chairman 
Mr. Jagdeep 
Singh Rana 

Vice President 

Mr. Praful 
Agrawal 

Commercial Head 

Mr. Sunil 
Pandey 

Planning Head 

 
OTHER BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Board has constituted following other 
Board Committee besides the Committee 
mentioned above: 

1. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
COMMITTEE 

 
 Composition and Meeting: 

Company has constituted Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and read with 
Rules framed thereunder. 
The CSR Committee met 2 (Two) times during 
the Financial Year 2024-2025 on 10th August, 
2024 and 12th February, 2025. The 
Composition of the CSR Committee as on 31st 
March, 2025 and the details of members’ 
participation at the respective meeting of the 
Committee are as under; 
 



 
Name of the 

Director 
Designation Nature of 

Directorship 
Committee Meeting Details 

Held during 
their tenure 

Attended 

Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari  

Chairperson Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Mr. Sandeep Shah Member Non-Executive/ 
Independent Director 

2 2 

Mr. Anil Goyal Member Non-Executive/Non-
Independent Director 

2 2 

 Terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference of the CSR 
Committee are as under: 
 
- Formulate and recommend to the 

Board, a Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy which shall 
indicate the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company in areas 
or subject, as specified in Schedule 
VII of the Companies Act, 2013; 

- To Review and recommend the 
amount of expenditure to be 
incurred on the activities to be 
undertaken by the Company; 

- Monitor the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy of the Company 
from time to time; 

- Adhere to Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 & Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modifications, 
amendments or re-enactment 
thereto for the time being in force) 
and; 

-  

- Any other matter as the CSR 
Committee may deem appropriate 
after approval of the Board of 
Directors or as may be directed by 
the Board of Directors from time to 
time. 

  
2. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Company has constituted Management 
Committee to exercise all such power and 
to do all such acts and things, as the Board 
of Directors of the Company is authorized 
to exercise and do as per section 179 and 
other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The 
recommendation and/or observations 
made by the Committee shall be placed 
before the subsequent Board Meeting for 
noting and taking necessary actions. 
 
Management Committee met 1 (one) times 
during the Financial Year on 10th August, 
2024. 
 
The Composition of the Management 
Committee as on 31st March, 2025 and the 
details of members’ participation at the 
respective meeting of the Committee are 
as under; 

 

Name of the 
Director/Member 

Designation Nature of 
Directorship 

Committee Meeting 
Details 

Held during 
their tenure 

Attended 

Mr. Anil Goyal  Chairperson Non-Executive/ Non-
Independent Director 

1 1 

Mr. Prakash Parekh Member Executive Director 1 1 

Mr. Dhrumil Shah Member Chief Financial Officer 1 1 

 
 



 
 
6. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 
 
(a) Pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors vis-à-

vis the Company 
 
There was no any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors 
vis-à-vis the Company. 
 

(b) Criteria for Making payment to Non-Executive Directors 
 
Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors is available on the website 
of Company at the following web link: www.hpbl.in. 
 
 

(c) Disclosure with respect to remuneration 
 

1. Executive Director 
                                                                                            (In Lakhs) 

Name of Director Salary Commission Perquisite Stock 
Options 

Total 

Mr. Prakash Parekh - - - - - 
 

 
2. Non-Executive Director 

 
Name of Director Category Sitting 

fees 
(In 
Lakhs) 

Mr. Anil Goyal Non-Executive Director Nil 
Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari  Non-Executive/ Independent Director Nil 
Mr. Sandeep Shah, Director Non-Executive/ Independent Director Nil 
Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari,  Non-Executive/ Independent Director 0.60 
Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia** Non-Executive/ Independent Director Nil 

 
- Mr. Anil Goyal, Mr. Sandeep Shah, Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari and Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia 

opted to forgo their right to receive sitting fees. 
- Mr. Prakash Parekh opted to forgo his right to receive remuneration. 

 
Performance criteria include the growth, consolidation, Compliance Record, comparison 
with the peer group as assessed/adjudged along with other criteria as decided by the 
Board /Committee time to time. 
 

3. There are no separate service agreements executed by the Company and its 
Directors. Letter of appointment issued to executive directors. 
 
The Non-Executive/Independent Directors are entitled to commission and sitting 
fees in respect of the meetings of the Board and its committee/ sub-committees 
attended by them and they are also entitled to reimbursement of all expenses for 
participation in the Board and other meetings in accordance with the Letter of 
Appointment issued to them. 



 
Apart from letters of appointments, there are no service agreements/severance 
fees executed/paid by the Company to the Directors. For all the abovementioned 
agreements notice period is/would be 90 days. Non-Executive Director may resign 
from his/her position at any time after serving a reasonable written notice to the 
Board. 
 

4. The Company has not granted any ESOPs to any of the Directors of the Company. 
 
 
7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 
(a) Location and Time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held and 

Special Resolutions passed in the previous 3 AGMs: 
 
Financial 
year ended 

Day/Date of 
AGM 

Time Location No. of 
Special 
Resolution 
passed 

31st March, 
2024 

30-09-2024 11:30 AM Through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / 
Other Audio Visual 
Means(“OAVM”) 

1 (One)  
See Note: 
1 

31st March, 
2023 

29-09-2023 11:30 AM Through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / 
Other Audio Visual 
Means(“OAVM”) 

2 (Two)  
See Note: 
2 

31st March, 
2022 

26-09-2022 11:00 AM Through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / 
Other Audio Visual 
Means(“OAVM”) 

3 (Three) 
See Note: 
3 

 

Notes: 
 

1. In the Annual General Meeting held on 
30th September, 2024, 01 (One) Special 
Resolutions were passed as follow: 

 
- To consider and approve the payment 

of remuneration to Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari (DIN: 07113136), Non-
Executive Independent Director in 
excess of the limit prescribed under 
Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

2. In the Annual General Meeting held 
on 29th September, 2023, 02 (Two) 
Special Resolutions were passed as 
follow: 
 

 

1) To consider and approve the 
payment of remuneration to Mrs. 
Meenu Maheshwari (DIN: 
07113136), Non-Executive 
Independent Director in excess of 
the limit prescribed under Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 
 

2) To approve the appointment of Mr. 
Ranjeet Mal Kastia (DIN: 00053059) 
as an Independent Director of the 
Company. 
 

3. In the Annual General Meeting held on 
26th September, 2022, 03 (Three) 
Special Resolutions were passed as 
follow: 

 
 
 



1) To approve the appointment of Mr. 
Judhisthir Behera (DIN: 08605965) as 
an Independent Director of the 
Company; 

2) To consider and approve the payment 
of remuneration to Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari (DIN: 07113136), Non-
Executive Independent Director in 
excess of the limits prescribed under 
Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015; 

3) To consider and approve the grant of 
ESOPs to Mr. Anil Goyal (DIN: 
03071035), Chairman and Non-
Executive Director of the Company. 

 

(a) The details of Special Resolution 
passed last year through postal ballot 
and details of voting pattern: 
No Special Resolutions were passed 
during 2024-25 through postal ballot. 

 
(b) The Person who conducted the Postal 

Ballot exercise: Not applicable 
 
(c) Whether any Special Resolution is 

proposed to be conducted through 
postal ballot: 

 
No Special Resolution is proposed to 
be conducted through postal ballot as 
on the date of this report. 

 
(d) Procedure for Postal Ballot: Procedure 

of Postal Ballot does not require. 
 

 
8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 
(a) Quarterly results The Quarterly Results are published in the 

newspapers and displayed on the Company’s website 
at www.hpbl.in  

(b) Newspapers wherein 
results normally 
published 

The Quarterly and Half Yearly Financial Results are 
generally published in Financial Express in English 
and Gujarati Language. 

(c) Company’s website, 
where displayed 

The separate section named “INVESTORS” in the 
Company’s website at www.hpbl.in is displaying 
required information in respect of interest of various 
Stakeholders. The Annual Report for this Financial 
Year 2024-25 as well as Quarterly / Half Yearly 
Financial Results of the Company is also available 
therein. 

(d) Whether it also displays 
official news releases; 

The Company’s official news releases, if any are also 
available on the Company’s website. 

(e) The presentations made 
to institutional investors 
or to analysts 

No presentations were made to institutional investors 
or to the analysts during the year under review. 

 
9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 
(a) Annual General 

Meeting 
Date: 25th September, 2025 
Time: 11.30 AM 
Venue: The 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company is being 
conducted through VC/OAVM. The proceedings of the AGM shall 
be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the 
Company which shall be the deemed Venue of the AGM. 

(b) Financial Year Financial Year of the Company is from 1st April to 31st March and 
financial results will be declared for the financial year 2025-26 as 
per the following schedule. 



Particulars Tentative and Subject to 
Change 

Quarterly Unaudited Financial Results 
Quarter ending 30th June, 2025 On or before 14th August, 

2025 
Quarter ending 30th September, 
2025 

On or before 14th November, 
2025 

Quarter ending 31st December, 
2025 

On or before 14th February, 
2026 

Fourth Quarter and Annual ending 
on 
31st March, 2026 

On or before 30th May, 2026 

(c)  Dividend Payment 
Date 

Not applicable 

(d) Name and address 
of stock 
exchanges at 
which 
the Company’s 
Equity 
shares are listed 
& details 
of annual listing 
fee paid 

BSE Limited (BSE) 
 
Corporate office: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai - 400001. 
                           
Annual Listing Fees for the year 2025-26 has been paid by the 
Company to BSE 

(e) Stock 
Code/Symbol 

BSE Equity Script Code: 526717  

 
(f) Market Price Data - High, Low during each Month in last Financial Year 
 

Month 

BSE LIMITED 

High Price Low Price 

Apr-24 200.40 172.20 

May-24 185.95 153.10 

Jun-24 185.20 147.20 

Jul-24 204.95 151.00 

Aug-24 196.45 157.00 

Sep-24 194.90 159.35 

Oct-24 184.25 159.60 

Nov-24 179.95 155.00 

Dec-24 169.15 143.00 

Jan-25 157.90 130.75 

Feb-25 144.00 100.10 

Mar-25 167.15 97.05 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(g)  Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex  
 

Month 

HBPL PRICE BSE SENSEX  

High Price Low Price High  Low 

Apr-24 200.40 172.20 75124.28 71816.46 

May-24 185.95 153.10 76009.68 71866.01 

Jun-24 185.20 147.20 79671.58 70234.43 

Jul-24 204.95 151.00 81908.43 78971.79 

Aug-24 196.45 157.00 82637.03 78295.86 

Sep-24 194.90 159.35 85978.25 80895.05 

Oct-24 184.25 159.60 84648.40 79137.98 

Nov-24 179.95 155.00 80569.73 76802.73 

Dec-24 169.15 143.00 82317.74 77560.79 

Jan-25 157.90 130.75 80072.99 75267.59 

Feb-25 144.00 100.10 78735.41 73141.27 

Mar-25 167.15 97.05 78741.69 72633.54 

 
 
(h) In case the Securities are 

suspended from trading, the 
Directors Report shall explain 
the reason thereof: Not 
Applicable 

 
(i) Registrar to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents: 
Bigshare Services Private Limited 
 
Address: 
A-802, Samudra Complex,  
Nr. Girish Cold Drinks,  
Off C.G. Road, Navrangpura, 
Ahmedabad-380009, Gujarat 
 
Tel No.: 079-40024135 
Email: bssahd@bigshareonline.com 
Website: www.bigshareonline.com 
 

(j) Share Transfer System 
 

Bigshare Services Private Limited is the 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company. 

 
The Board has delegated the authority for 
approving the transmission, transposition, 
deletion shares and change of name etc. to 
the Company Secretary and Executive 
Director. 

 
 

A summary of transactions so approved 
and placed before the SRC on a quarterly 
basis. The matters relating to issue of 
duplicate share certificate(s) are approved 
by SRC. 

 
The Company has obtained an annual 
certificate from a Practicing Company 
Secretary as per the requirement of 
Regulation 40(9) of Listing Regulations 
confirming that all certificates have been 
issued within thirty days of the date of 
lodgment of transfer, renewal, exchange 
request. The certificate has been filed with 
the Stock Exchange and is available on the 
website of the Company. 

 
In terms of amended Regulation 40 of 
Listing Regulations, transfer of securities in 
physical form shall not be processed unless 
the securities are held in the demat mode 
with a Depository Participant. Further, 
effective 25th January, 2022, SEBI has 
made it mandatory for listed companies to 
issue securities in demat mode only while 
processing any investor service requests 
viz. issue of duplicate share certificates, 
exchange/sub-division / splitting / 
consolidation of securities, transmission / 
transposition of securities. 
 

 



 
(k) Distribution of Shareholding 

 
Distribution of Shareholding of fully paid-up equity shares of face value of ₹ 10/- 
each as on 31st March, 2025. 
 

No. of Shares No. of 
Shareholder 

% of Total 
Shareholders 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Sharehol

ding 

1-5000 5130 95.9955 1570360 1.4711 
5001-10000 95 1.7777 775710 0.7267 
10001-20000 47 0.8795 672800 0.6303 
20001-30000 18 0.3368 446930 0.4187 
30001-40000 7 0.1310 247690 0.2320 
40001-50000 4 0.0749 191580 0.1795 
50001-100000 14 0.2620 1160960 1.0876 
100001 & 
above 

29 0.5427 101682340 95.2542 

Total 5344 100 10674837 100 
 

(l) Pattern of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2025 
 
Sr 
No Category No of Shares 

Percentage 
of Holding 

1 Promoters & Promoter Group 8006120 74.9999 

2 Public Shareholding:     

A-I Institutions (Domestic)     

  Mutual Funds 6 0.0001 

  Banks 512000 4.7963 

A-II Institutions (Foreign)     

  Foreign Portfolio Investors Category 
I 

2251 0.0211 

  Foreign Portfolio Investors Category 
II 

5132 0.0481 

B Non-institutions     

  
Individuals - i. Individual 
shareholders holding nominal share 
capital up to Rs. 2 lakhs. 

514660 4.8212 

  
Individuals – Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital in 
excess of Rs. 2 lakhs. 

852257 7.9838 

  Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) 11443 0.1072 

  Bodies Corporate 725296 6.7944 

  Any Other (Clearing Member) 9968 0.0934 

  Any Other (Hindu Undivided Family) 35704 0.3345 

  Total 10674837 100.00 
 
 
 



(m) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity 
Equity Shares of the Company can be traded in dematerialized form only. The 
Company has established connectivity with National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) through its 
Registrars & Share Transfer Agents Bigshare Services Private Limited. 
 
As per the Reconciliation Share Capital Audit Report Certificate of 31st March, 2025 
issued by the Practicing Company Secretary under Regulation 76 of SEBI 
(Depositary and Participants) Regulations, 2018, Break up of fully paid-up shares 
in physical and demat form as on 31st March, 2025 is as follow: 
 
Sr No Particular No of shares Percentage of 

Shares 
1 Demat Segment:   
 -NSDL 7454602 69.83 
 -CDSL 3218332 30.15 
2.  Physical: 1903 0.02 

Total 10674837 100.00 
 

(n) Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository 
Receipts or Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date 
and likely impact on equity: Nil 

(o) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities 

The Company does not deal in commodities and hence, the disclosure pursuant 
to SEBI circular dated 15th November, 2018 is not required to be given. 
 

(p) Plant locations: 
 Plot No.485, Santej Vadsar Road, Santej, Tal. Kalol Santej, Gujarat - 382721 
 Plot 828, Ambica Industrial Estate, Rakanpur, Ahmedabad, Gujarat - 382921. 

 
(q) Address for correspondence 

 
To contact Registrar & Transfer Agent 
for all matters relating to Shares, 
Dividends, Annual 
Reports 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 
 
A-802, Samudra Complex, Nr. Girish 
Cold Drinks, off C.G. Road, 
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad-380009, 
Gujarat. 
Tel No.: 079-40024135 
Email: bssahd@bigshareonline.com 
Website: www.bigshareonline.com 

For any other General Matters or in 
case of any difficulties/ grievances 
including matters relating to Shares, 
Dividends, Annual Reports as above 

Secretarial Department 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc, Nr. 
Panchshil Bus Stand, Usmanpura 
Ahmedabad- 380013 

Name of the Compliance Officer Ms. Khusboo Goyal 
Company Secretary (Upto 20th 
November, 2024) 
Ms. Shweta Jhawar Company 
Secretary (from 27th February, 
2025) 

 
 



(r) List of all credit ratings obtained by 
the entity along with any revisions 
thereto during the relevant financial 
year, for all debt instruments of 
such entity or any fixed deposit 
programme or any scheme or 
proposal of the listed entity 
involving mobilization of funds, 
whether in India or abroad: Not 
Applicable 

 
10. Other disclosures: 

 
a. Disclosures on materially 

significant related party 
transactions that may have 
potential conflict with the interests 
of listed entity at large: 

 
During the Financial Year 2024-2025, no 
materially significant related party 
transaction undertaken by the Company 
under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with rules framed thereunder, 
Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS24) 
and Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 that may have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at 
large. The Company has entered into some 
transactions with related parties as defined 
under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 
2013, which were in the ordinary course of 
business and at arms’ length basis and the 
same were duly approved or reviewed by 
the Audit Committee. 

 
The necessary disclosures regarding the 
transactions with related parties are given 
in the notes to the financial statements. 
Your Company has formulated a Policy on 
materiality of Related Party Transactions 
and also dealing with Related Party 
Transaction. It is posted on the website of 
the Company which can be accessed by the 
link: www.hpbl.in. 
 

 
 

 
b. Details of non-compliance by the 

listed entity, penalties, strictures 
imposed on the listed entity by 
Stock Exchange(s) or the Board or 
any Statutory Authority, on any 
matter related to Capital Markets, 
during the last three years: 

 
The Company has received clarification 
from BSE regarding significant 
movement in price, in order to ensure 
that investors have latest relevant 
information about the Company and to 
inform the market so that the interest 
of the investors is safeguard. The 
Company submitted the clarification on 
July 26, 2024. 
Company did non compliance of 
Regulation 23(9) of SEBI LODR 
Regulation as there was delay in 
submission of related party transaction 
details for the half year ended on 
September 30,2024. The Company 
gives its assurance to ensure timely 
disclosures in the future. 
 
The Company has not complied with the 
Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, as the 
outcome of the Board meeting and were 
not submitted within the prescribed 
timeline. The Company gives its 
assurance to ensure timely disclosures 
in the future and to avoid recurrence of 
such non-compliance. 
The Company had not submitted the 
intimation regarding Resignation of 
Independent Director in XBRL mode to 
the Stock Exchange. However, Stock 
Exchange has not imposed any fine. 
The Company had not submitted the 
intimation regarding Resignation of 
Company Secretary and Compliance 
Officer in XBRL mode to the Stock 
Exchange. However, Stock Exchange 
has not imposed any fine.  
The Company had not submitted the 
intimation regarding Appointment of 
Independent Director in XBRL mode to 
the Stock Exchange. However, Stock 
Exchange has not imposed any fine. 
 

 
 

 



The Company had delayed in submission of 
announcement of appointment of Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the 
Company in XBRL mode to the Stock 
Exchange. However, Stock Exchange has 
not imposed any fine. 

 
The Company had not submitted the Notice 
of Annual General Meeting for the Financial 
Year 2022-23 in XBRL mode to the Stock 
Exchange. However, Stock Exchange has 
not imposed any fine. 

 
The Company had delayed in compliance 
with Minimum Public Shareholding (MPS) 
requirement mandated under Rule 19(2)(b) 
and 19A of the Securities Contracts 
(Regulation) Rules, 1957 (“SCRR”) read 
with Regulation 38 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR Regulations”). Due to delay, 
BSE Limited (“Stock Exchange”) had 
imposed fine of amount Rs. 4,42,500 
(inclusive of GST) against which the waiver 
application dated 20th February, 2024 had 
been filed by the Company and same had 
been approved by the Stock Exchange and 
granted partial waiver of fine levied 
pursuant to SEBI circular 
CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/115 dated October 
10, 2017 via email dated 22nd July, 2024. 
The Company had paid the partial fine 
amount of Rs. 2,47,800 (inclusive of GST) 
with in stipulated timeline prescribed in 
Stock Exchange email. 
Freezing of Demat Accounts of the 
promotors, promotor group, directors and 
KMPs by The Calcutta Stock Exchange 
Association Limited (CSE). Further, the 
Company has received Letters from The 
Calcutta Stock Exchange Association 
Limited (CSE) vide letter dated 09th 
November, 2023 regarding final opportunity 
for compliance of provision of listing of 
Equity Shares listed and Letter dated 20th 
December, 2023 regarding non-compliance 
of MSP Guidelines against which reply has 
already been provided by the Company on 
that matter.  
 

 

The Company has also received email from 
The Calcutta Stock Exchange Association 
Limited (CSE) vide email dated 24th January, 
2024 regarding payment of all outstanding 
dues (including before revival) including 
Listing Fees, Taxes against Listing Fees, 
Interest, Revocation Processing Fee, De-
listing Processing Fees, Amalgamated Fees, 
Late Fees, Service Fees and the same has 
been paid by the Company on same day i.e. 
on 24th January, 2024 and also submitted 
revocation and/ or delisting application. But 
the Company doesn’t receive any update/ 
communication/ outcome from The Calcutta 
Stock Exchange Association Limited (CSE) 
till date. However, on filing of application/ 
reply/ request and making payment of 
outstanding fees by the Company, only 
Demat Accounts of the Directors/ promotors 
and promotors group/ KMPs has been 
activated. 
 
BSE Limited had imposed fine of ₹10,000/- 
plus applicable Taxes on Company on 14th 
July, 2023 due to delay in submission of 
disclosure of Related Party Transactions for 
the half year ended on 31st March, 2022 and 
same has been paid to BSE Limited on 5th 
August, 2022. 

 
The Company has submitted disclosure 
regarding the intimation of resignation of 
Independent Director after completion of 24 
hours regarding the same BSE has not 
imposed any fine.  

 
The Company has been delayed in 
submission of annual report for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2022 in XBRL mode 
regarding same BSE has not imposed any 
fine. 

 
The Company has received email from BSE 
regarding the freezing of promoter demat 
account on 1st August, 2022 due to non-
payment of SOP fines and the same has 
been replied on 5th September, 2022 by 
management, citing reason for non-
compliance due to CIRP under IBC and 
requested to waive the charges. BSE vide 
email dated 7th December, 2022 has 
confirmed the waiver of same and unfreeze 
the promoter demat account. 
 

 
 

 



c. Details of establishment of vigil 
mechanism, whistle blower policy, 
and affirmation that no personnel 
have been denied access to the audit 
committee: 

 
Pursuant to the provision of the Section 
177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with rules framed thereunder, Regulation 
4(2)(d)(iv) and 22 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, Your Company has 
established Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower Policy for their Directors and 
Employees to report concerns about illegal 
or unethical practices, unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of 
the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics 
policy. 
 
The details of establishment of such 
mechanism available on the website of the 
Company and it can be access by the 
following Link www.hpbl.in. 
 
It is affirmed that no personnel have been 
denied to access the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee 
 

d. Details of compliance with 
mandatory requirements and 
adoption of the non-mandatory 
requirements: 

 
Company has complied with all the 
mandatory requirements as specified in 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
simultaneously the non-mandatory 
requirements as specified in Part E of 
Schedule II are adopted by the Company up 
to the following extent: 
 
 As the Quarterly and Half Yearly, 

financial performance along with 
significant events are published in 
newspapers and are also available on 
the Company’s website, the same are 
not being sent personally to the 
Shareholders. 

 M/s. BDO India LLP, Internal Auditor of 
the Company reports directly to the 
Audit Committee of the Board. 

 
 
 

 

e. Web link where policy for 
determining ‘Material Subsidiaries’ 
is disclosed 
 
The Company has One Subsidiaries and 
the Company has formulated a policy for 
determining Material Subsidiaries and it 
is available on the website: www.hpbl.in. 
 

f. Web link where policy on dealing 
with Related Party Transactions 
 
The Policy on dealing with related party 
transaction is disclosed on the website of 
the Company and can be accessed at 
www.hpbl.in. 
 

g. Disclosure of Commodity price risks 
and Commodity hedging activities 
 
The Company does not have any direct 
impact of commodity price. In addition to 
this, the Company has Risk Management 
Policy in place to mitigate the price risk. 
 

h. Details of utilization of funds raised 
through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutions placement as 
specified under Regulation 32 (7A). 
 
Not Applicable 
 

i. A certificate from a Company 
Secretary in Practice that none of 
the Directors on the Board of the 
Company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of 
Companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such 
Statutory Authority. 
 
Certificate from Practicing Company 
Secretary confirming that none of the 
Directors on the Board of the Company 
were debarred or disqualified from being 
re-appointed under retirement by 
rotation and/or continuing as Directors of 
the Company by the SEBI, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory 
Authorities is attached as “Annexure-
A”. 

 



j. Total fees for all services paid by 
the listed entity and its 
subsidiaries, on a consolidated 
basis, to the statutory auditor and 
all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the 
statutory auditor is a part. 
 
Total fees for all services paid by the 
Company and its Subsidiaries on a 
consolidated basis to the statutory 
auditor and all the entities in the 
network firm/network entity of which 
statutory auditor is a part are provided 
in the financial statement. 
 

k. Disclosures in relation to the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013: 

- Number of complaints filed during 
the Financial Year – NIL 

- Number of complaints disposed of 
during the Financial Year-NIL 

- Number of complaints pending as on 
end of the Financial Year- NIL 

 
l. Disclosure by listed entity and its 

subsidiaries of ‘Loan and 
Advances’ in the name of loan to 
Firms/Companies in which 
Directors are interested by name 
and amount 

 
Details of loans and advances given 
to Firms/Companies in which 
Directors are interested, if any, is 
mentioned in Related Party 
Transactions forming part of 
Financial Statements. Please refer 
the same. 
 

m. Details of Material Subsidiaries 
of the listed entity; including the 
date and place of incorporation 
and the name and date of 
appointment of the statutory 
auditors of such subsidiaries 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Name of Material 
Subsidiary 

K. P. Woven 
Private Limited 

Date of 
Incorporation 

02-03-2010 

Place of 
Incorporation 

Madhya Pradesh 

Name and Date of 
appointment of 
Statutory Auditor 

Patel & Mehta 
Date of 
Appointment - 
28th September, 
2023 

 
n. Non-compliance of any requirement 

of Corporate Governance Report of 
sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V 
(c) of Listing Regulations: NIL 

 
o. The disclosure of the compliance 

with Corporate Governance 
Requirements specified in 
regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) 
to (i) of sub regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 of Listing Regulations 

 
The Company has complied with all the 
mandatory requirements specified in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) 
of sub–regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the 
listing regulations to the extent as 
applicable with regards to Corporate 
Governance. 
 
p. Disclosures with respect to Demat 

Suspense Account/Unclaimed 
Suspense Account 

 
The Company does not have any Shares in 
the demat suspense account or unclaimed 
suspense account. 
q. As required under Regulation 36(3) of 

the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard 2 on General 
Meetings, particulars of Directors 
seeking re-appointment at this AGM are 
given in the Annexure to the Notice of 
this AGM. 

r. Declaration by the Managing Director on 
Code of Conduct as required by 
Schedule V of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. It is attached as “Annexure-B” 

 
 
 
 



s. MD / C.F.O. Certification 
 
The required certificate under Regulation 
17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 signed by the Managing Directors and 
Chief Financial officer is annexed to this 
report as “Annexure-C”. 

 

t. Compliance Certificate 
 
Certificate from M/s. SCS & Co. LLP, 
Practicing Company Secretary, confirming 
compliance with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated under the Listing 
Regulations attached as “Annexure-D” 
 
Disclosure of agreement binding listed 
entities 
 
There are not any agreement which are 
binding on listed entity.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  



“Annexure – A” 
 CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To, 
The Members,  
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc.,  
Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand, Usmanpura,  
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat.  
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received 
from the Directors of HCP PLASTENE BULKPACK LIMITED having CIN: 
L25200GJ1984PLC050560 and having registered office at H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat 
Soc., Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand, Usmanpura, Ahmedabad-380013 (hereinafter referred to 
as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Clause 10(i) of Part C of 
Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications 
(including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as 
considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the financial year ending on 31st March, 2025, have been debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 
 

Date format: 31/03/2025 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors DIN Date of Appointment in the 
Company 

[As appearing on MCA Portal] 
1 Mr. Prakash Hiralal Parekh 00158264 21/10/2020 
2 Mr. Anil Shyamsunder Goyal 03071035 21/10/2020 
3 Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari 07113136 21/10/2020 
4 Mr. Ashutosh Maheshvari 00001582 09/08/2021 
5 Mr. Sandeep Motilal Shah 01850151 09/08/2021 
6 Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia 00053059 31/08/2023 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 

FOR SCS & Co., LLP 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
Sd/- 

Abhishek Chhajed  
FCS: 11334 
COP:15131 

Date: 25th August, 2025                               UDIN:F011334G001074858 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                             PRC: 1677/2022 



“Annexure – B” 
DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

  
This is to certify that Company “HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited” has in place a Code of 
Conduct applicable to the Board Members as well as the Senior Management Personnel in 
terms of Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and that the same has been uploaded on the Company’s website 
www.hpbl.in. I further certify that all the Board Members and the Senior Management 
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for all Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 26th May, 2025 
Place: Ahmedabad 

For HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Prakash Parekh 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00158264 

  

         
       

         
  



“Annexure – C” 
MD & CFO CERTIFICATION 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Board of Directors 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc,  
Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand, Usmanpura,  
Ahmedabad–380013, Gujarat. 
 
We, Prakash Parekh (DIN: 00158264), Managing Director and Dhrumil Shah, Chief 
Financial Officer of the Company, to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 
 
1. We have reviewed Standalone as well as Consolidated Financial Statements and the 

Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the Quarter / Year ended 31st March, 2025 
and that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 
 

a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations. 
 

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
Company’s code of conduct. 
 

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of 
the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors 
and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal 
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to 
take to rectify these deficiencies. 
 

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: 
 
a) There has not been any significant changes in internal control over financial 

reporting during the year; 
b) There has not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the 

year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements; and 

c) There has not been any instances of significant fraud of which we have become 
aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee 
having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting. 

 
For HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 

 
 
 
Date: 26th May, 2025 
Place: Ahmedabad 

 
Sd/- 

Prakash Parekh 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00158264 

 
Sd/- 

Dhrumil Shah 
Chief Financial Officer 



“Annexure - D” 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

To, 
The Members, 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc., 
Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand, Usmanpura,  
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat. 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by HCP 
PLASTENE BULKPACK LIMITED, CIN: L25200GJ1984PLC050560 (“the Company”) for 
the year ended on 31st March, 2025 as stipulated under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing 
Regulations”). 
 
The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. Our examinations were limited to procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements 
of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us and based on the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we 
certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) 
and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of 
the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 

FOR SCS & Co., LLP 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

 
Sd/- 

Abhishek Chhajed  
FCS: 11334 
COP:15131 

Date: 25th August, 2025                               UDIN: F011334G001074891 
Place: Ahmedabad                                                                              PRC: 1677/2022 

 





MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
 

Global Economic Overview 
 
Global growth is projected at 3.3 percent both in 
2025 and 2026, below the historical (2000–19) 
average of 3.7 percent. The forecast for 2025 is 
broadly unchanged from that in the October 
2024 World Economic Outlook (WEO), primarily 
on account of an upward revision in the United 
States offsetting downward revisions in other 
major economies. Global headline inflation is 
expected to decline to 4.2 percent in 2025 and 
to 3.5 percent in 2026, converging back to 
target earlier in advanced economies than in 
emerging market and developing economies. 
 
Global growth is projected at 3.3 percent both in 
2025 and 2026, broadly unchanged from the 
October 2024 World Economic Outlook (WEO) 
forecast with an upward revision in the United 
States offsetting downward revisions elsewhere. 
The near-term outlook is characterized by 
divergent paths, while medium-term risks to 
growth are tilted to the downside. Renewed 
inflationary pressures could interrupt the 
monetary policy pivot, with implications for fiscal 
sustainability and financial stability. The policy 
mix should balance trade-offs and rebuild 
buffers. 
The baseline forecast is for the world economy 
to continue growing at 3.2 percent during 2024 
and 2025, at the same pace as in 2023. A slight 
acceleration for advanced economies where 
growth is expected to rise from 1.6 percent in 
2023 to 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 
2025 will be offset by a modest slowdown in 
emerging market and developing economies 
from 4.3 percent in 2023 to 4.2 percent in both 
2024 and 2025. The forecast for global growth 
five years from now at 3.1 percent is at its lowest 
in decades. Global inflation is forecast to decline 
steadily from 6.8 percent in 2023 to 5.9 percent 
in 2024 and 4.5 percent in 2025 with advanced 
economies returning to their inflation targets 
sooner than emerging market and developing 
economies. Core inflation is generally projected 
to decline more gradually. The global economy 
has been surprisingly resilient, despite 
significant central bank interest rate hikes to 
restore price stability. (Source: IMF World 
Economic Outlook – July, 2024, April, 2025 and 
January, 2025). 
 
 

Indian Economy Overview 
 
India’s economy carried forward the momentum 
it built in FY23 into FY24 despite a gamut of 
global and external challenges. The focus on 
maintaining macroeconomic stability ensured 
that these challenges had minimal impact on 
India’s economy. As a result, India’s real GDP 
grew by 8.2 per cent in FY24, posting growth of 
over 7 per cent for a third consecutive year, 
driven by stable consumption demand and 
steadily improving investment demand. On the 
supply side, gross value added (GVA) at 2011-
12 prices grew by 7.2 per cent in FY24, with 
growth remaining broad-based. Net taxes at 
constant (2011-12) prices grew by 19.1 per cent 
in FY24, aided by reasonably strong tax growth, 
both at the centre and state levels and 
rationalisation of subsidy expenditure. This led 
to the difference between GDP and GVA growth 
in FY24. 
 
The Indian economy recovered swiftly from the 
pandemic, with its real GDP in FY24 being 20 per 
cent higher than the pre-COVID, FY20 levels. 
This meant a CAGR of 4.6 per cent from FY20, 
despite a 5.8 per cent decline in FY21 inflicted 
by the pandemic. Analysis in this chapter shows 
that the current GDP level is close to the pre-
pandemic trajectory in Q4FY24. During the 
decade ending FY20, India grew at an average 
annual rate of 6.6 per cent, more or less 
reflecting the long run growth prospects of the 
economy. This is the background against which 
we can see the prospects for FY25. 
 
The structural reforms undertaken by the 
Government of India over the course of the last 
decade have put the economy firmly on a growth 
path, India is soon set to become the third 
largest economy in the world, following the US 
and China. In April 2024 World Economic 
Outlook, the IMF has raised India's growth 
forecast for 2024-25 to 6.8 per cent from 6.5 per 
cent on the back of strong domestic demand and 
a rising working-age population, making India 
the fastest-growing G20 economy. It is in line 
with expectations for economic growth, India 
has graduated from being a low-income country 
to a low-middle-income country. (Source: 
Economic Survey 2023-24). 
 
 
 



Plastic Industry 
 
The plastic industry is a major contributor to the 
Indian economy. For decades now, plastic has 
played a vital role in industries as diverse as 
Agriculture, Healthcare, Packaging, 
Construction, Electronics, Transportation, and 
Machinery. Plastic’s popularity can be attributed 
to its remarkable properties like lightweight, 
durability, chemically stable, and capability of 
being molded into a variety of shapes and sizes. 
Additionally, plastics are also cheap. 
 
The domestic plastic sector in the country has 
done well in the recent years and it has 
tremendous potential to grow further. The 
contribution of the plastic sector in making India 
a developed nation will be unparalleled and 
invaluable. the export of the country was stalled 
at around 500 million dollars till 2020 but the 
scenario has been changed in the last two years 
and the country has managed to touch the 776 
million dollars mark in the export sector. Plastic 
industry’s contribution was of 12 billion dollars 
and it has the potential to grow. Plastic sector 
has the potential to add business opportunities, 
jobs for young generation, opportunities in the 
world and it can help the government to grow 
the entire ecosystem of the plastic sector over 
the next few years. 
 
FIBC Space 
 
Indian manufacturers prefer to lower the total 
weight of bulk packaging that flexible 
intermediate bulk containers (FIBC) can provide. 
Their load-carrying capacity, versatility, re-
usability, cost-effectiveness and eco-friendly 
material are increasing the demand. There are 
four main types of FIBC bags - A,B,C, and D. D 
is the safest option if one is working with 
flammable solvents and gases or other 
combustible substances. 
 
Domestically, the utilization of bulk packaging 
(FIBC’S) is less compared to European and 
American markets. The demand in these 
countries is primarily due to the pharmaceutical 
industry, whereas in emerging economies 
agriculture and food processing are responsible 
for the demand. Persistent growth in these 
industries across the world is positively 
impacting the demand for FIBC. 
India is the largest exporter of FIBC jumbo bags 
in the World. The top three exporters of FIBC 
jumbo bags are India, followed by Turkey and 
China. 

As of July 17, 2024, FIBC jumbo bags export 
shipments from India stood at 7.4K, most of 
which goes to the Spain, United Kingdom and 
United States. This shipment number is 
enormously higher than both China and Turkey. 
 
The bulk packaging market is growing steadily in 
India and in this sector, flexible bulk packaging 
is the fastest growing segment. But mostly in 
India, overall awareness about the usage of 
FIBC products is inadequate among the 
consumers. Hence, it presents a significant 
opportunity to grow awareness and generate 
interest in the Indian market. 
 
With increasing awareness about FIBC and 
growing investment in R&D to improve the 
efficiency of the product to stay competitive, the 
market is likely to grow further with different 
segments like food, pharma, chemical, dairy 
(milk powder) etc. 
Going forward, the North American region is 
expected to be the dominant position in the bulk 
bag market worldwide owing to the high use of 
packaging materials by end-use industries and 
the growth of the fertilizer and chemical industry 
in this region. Europe is expected to grow at a 
substantial rate as well due to the involvement 
of bulk bags in the mining and pharmaceutical 
sectors in this region. 
 
The global FIBC market is anticipated to touch a 
valuation of US $12.6 billion by 2033, with a 
CAGR of 5.4%. 
 
India holds a substantial market share for FIBCs 
in the US and Europe markets. As per an 
industry expert, India has a 75% share in the 
European FIBC imports and a 72% share in the 
US import market and is now looking at the 
Japan and South Korea markets to drive the 
growth. 
 
Polypropylene Woven Sacks 
The demand for polypropylene woven sacks is 
increasing as it is a suitable alternative to PE 
(polyethene) considering environmental risks 
associated with this material. The global 
polypropylene woven sacks market is expected 
to surpass US $ 6.1 billion by 2034 growing at a 
CAGR of 4.2% from 2024 to 2034. 



The interest in polypropylene packs and sacks 
from the concrete business has expanded 
altogether over the most recent couple of years, 
because of an expansion in urbanization and 
development in the modern area. Worldwide 
organizations are peering toward fully expecting 
expanded requests from the structure and 
development industry. 
 
Developing economies, the rising population and 
the subsequent disposable income of people 
boost the market. Additionally, polypropylene is 
on the surge as they are used for packaging a 
range of products like fertilizers, sugar, 
chemicals, and various other products. 
 
Polypropylene woven bags and sacks will see an 
increase in demand as the cement industry 
continues to expand. During shipping and 
transportation, polypropylene woven bags and 
sacks provide excellent material handling and 
superior strength. Lately, it has been seen that 
the quantity of polypropylene woven packs and 
sacks makers for modern applications has 
expanded decisively. 
 
OUR COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited (HPBL) is a forty 
year old Company that specializes in 
manufacturing plastic packaging solutions with 
an expansive product portfolio comprising 
FIBCs, small bags and AD star bags. 
 
In the year 2001, it started manufacturing 
woven bags. The Company’s target markets are 
the EU and the US, which have stringent quality 
requirements. 
 
In 2019, Gopala Polyplast Limited was admitted 
to CIRP under the provision of IBC, 2016 due to 
default in payment by its erstwhile promoters to 
Financial and Operational Creditors. 
Subsequently, M/s Plastene India Limited 
submitted a Resolution Plan and the same was 
approved by Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal at Ahmedabad Bench. Under the new 
ownership and management of Plastene India 
Limited Group, Gopala Polyplast Limited was 
renamed as HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
(HPBL). Presently HPBL is a part of Plastene 
Group, a reputed FIBC manufacturer and 
exporter with a robust product portfolio range. 
 
 
 

OUR BUSINESS OVERVIEW 
 
The Company produces PP fabric which is sold in 
the international and domestic markets. The 
major product portfolio is small PP Woven Bags, 
FIBC Bags, AD Start Bags. Major consumption of 
these bags is by Cement, Sugar, Food grains and 
Fertilizer industries. 
 
During the Year FY 25, Revenue from operations 
stood at Rs. 118.08 Crore as compared to Rs. 
45.55 Crore for FY 24 showing increasing 
performance during the year. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 
 
OPPORTUNITIES 
 FIBC is an important product which could 

provide interesting growth opportunities in 
the domestic market and exports. 

 Our new subsidiary in Malaysia promises to 
strengthen our international exposure. 

 
THREATS 
 Spike in raw material prices could impact 

business profitability. 
 Global economic slowdown could impact the 

demand for our products. 
 
OUR HUMAN RESOURCE 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
Our priority has always been to create a future-
ready workforce. We believe that our Company 
can maintain sustainable and pro-table growth 
by focusing on performance culture. Therefore, 
we encourage our people at every step so that 
they can achieve organizational goals. 
 
Our business places a strong emphasis on its 
people development processes and works to 
update skill sets. Training is crucial for 
organizational development and success. Our 
training programs are created to mould the 
intellect of our employees so that it leads to 
quality performance of employees. 
 

 



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
          (INR in Lakhs) 

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 
Income (including other income) 11957.50 4681.44 
Total expenses other than finance cost and 
depreciation 

10454.31 4427.40 

Profit for the year before exceptional items and tax 762.18 (372.42) 
Exceptional items 0.00 0.00 
Profit for the year before tax 762.18 (372.42) 
Total tax expenses 187.81 (96.07) 
Net profit for the year after tax 574.37 (276.38) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 0 13.41 
Gross block  10749.39 

 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
 
For any Business entity to achieve its goals 
and objectives, internal control 
mechanisms are crucial. According to the 
size and nature of its operations, the 
Company has suitable internal control 
mechanisms. In order to ensure 
Company’s integrity and foster operational 
efficiency, there must be well-documented 
policies, guidelines, and procedures in 
place to track business and operational 
performance. Financial and other data are 
reliable for preparing financial information 
and other data, for maintaining 
accountability of assets and for preventing 
loss from transactions that are not 
authorized, recorded or reported correctly. 
All assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition. A comprehensive programme 
of internal audits and management review 
supplements internal control. The system 
has been created to guarantee the 
accuracy of financial and other records for 
the preparation of financial information 
and for maintaining asset accountability. 
 
Accounting Treatment  
 
Company adopted same accounting 
treatment as in previous year. In 
preparation of financial statement, there 
are not any treatment different from that 
prescribed in an Accounting Standard.  
 
 

RISKS & CONCERNS 
 
The Company has a robust risk 
management strategy to identify the 
various risks and opportunities across our 
operations. Periodic reviews are conducted 
and the summary is presented to the Board 
Committee. It oversees the processes and 
mitigation actions wherever necessary. 
The risk landscape includes long-term 
strategic risks, short to medium-term risks 
as well as single events.  
 
Senior Executive’s work to achieve KPIs 
and targets, including the financial and 
non-financial performance of the Company 
to mitigate associated risks. 
 
Details of significant changes  
 
There are not any significant change other 
than sales and profit. 
 
Details of change in return on 
net-worth as compared to 
previous financial year-  
 
There is not any significant change other 
than sales and profit. 
 
 
 
 

 





















































































































































































































































Notice of Annual General Meeting 
 

Notice is hereby given that the 41st Annual 
General Meeting (“AGM”) of HCP Plastene 
Bulkpack Limited (HPBL/Company) will be 
held on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 11.30 
a.m. through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-
Visual Means to transact the following 
businesses. The venue of the meeting shall be 
deemed to be the Registered office of the 
Company at H. B. Jirawala House, Navbharat 
Society, Nr. Panchshil Bus Stand, Usmanpura, 
Ahmedabad-380013, Gujarat. 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 

Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 31st March, 2025, including the 
Audited Balance Sheets as at 31st March, 
2025, the Statements of Profit and Loss and 
Cash Flow Statements for the year ended on 
that date and the report of the Board of 
Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon. 

 
2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Anil 

Goyal (DIN:- 03071035), who retire by 
rotation and being eligible to offers, 
himself for re-appointment: 
 

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, 
Executive and the Non-Executive Directors 
(other than Independent Directors) are subject to 
retirement by rotation. Mr. Anil Goyal, Non-
Executive Non-Independent Director who has 
been on the Board of the Company since long 
since his appointment and whose office is liable 
to retire at this AGM, being eligible, seeks re-
appointment. Based on the performance 
evaluation and the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 
Board recommends his re-appointment.  

 
Therefore, the Members are requested to 
consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Anil Goyal (DIN: 
03071035), who retire by rotation, be and is 
hereby re-appointed as a Director.” 
 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
3. To consider and approve the payment of 

remuneration to Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari 
(DIN: 07113136), Non-Executive 
Independent Director in excess of the limit 
prescribed under Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015 
 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with 
or without modification, the following 
resolution as an “Special Resolution”: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the 
Regulation 17(6)(ca) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules framed thereunder, the 
consent of the Members be and is hereby 
accorded for payment of remuneration to 
Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari (DIN:07113136), 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company, details whereof are set out in the 
Explanatory Statement, being in excess of 
fifty percent of the total annual 
remuneration payable to all Non-Executive 
Directors. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company and/or any 
Committee thereof be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds and 
things, and to execute all such documents, 
instruments and writings as may be 
required to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
4. To consider and approve Material Related 

Party Transactions of the Company 
 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with 
or without modification, the following 
resolution as an “Ordinary Resolution”: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the rules framed thereunder (including any 
statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force, if any), and 
Company’s policy on Related Party Transactions 
and in terms of Regulation 23 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), 
as amended from time to time, the consent of the 
Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (“Board”), for entering into and / or 
carrying out  and / or continuing with existing 
contracts / arrangements / transactions or 
modification(s) of earlier / 
arrangements/transactions or as fresh and 
independent transaction(s) or otherwise 
(whether individually or series of transaction(s) 
taken together or otherwise), with related parties 
during the year commencing from the 
conclusion of this AGM up to the conclusion of 
Next AGM (up to AGM 2026) as per the details 
set out in the explanatory statement annexed to 
this notice, notwithstanding the fact that the 
aggregate value of all these transaction(s), 
whether undertaken directly by the Company or 
along with its subsidiary (ies), may exceed the 
prescribed threshold as per the provisions of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations as applicable from time 
to time, however, that the said contract(s) / 
arrangement(s) / transaction(s) shall be carried 
out at an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 
course of business of the Company; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ratification 
of members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to any 
contracts/arrangements/transactions or 
modification entered into from 1st April, 2025 to 
the date of Annual General Meeting; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and 
is hereby severally authorized to execute all such 
agreements, documents, instruments and 
writings as deemed necessary, with power to 
alter and vary the terms and conditions of such 
contracts/arrangements /transactions, settle all 
questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in 
this regard.” 
 

5. To consider and approve Material Related 
Party Transactions of the K. P. Woven 
Private Limited, a Subsidiary Company 
with certain Related Parties 
 

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification, the following resolution 
as an “Ordinary Resolution”: 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the rules framed thereunder 
(including any statutory amendment(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force, if any),and Company’s policy on Related 
Party Transaction and in terms of Regulation 23 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to 
time, the consent of the Members of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), 
for entering into and / or carrying out  and / 
or continuing with existing contracts / 
arrangements / transactions or modification(s) 
of earlier / arrangements / transactions or as 
fresh and independent transaction(s) or 
otherwise (whether individually or series of 
transaction(s) taken together or otherwise) by 
K. P. Woven Private Limited (Subsidiary 
Company) with related parties during the year 
commencing from the conclusion of this AGM 
up to the conclusion of Next AGM (up to AGM 
2026) as per the details set out in the 
explanatory statement annexed to this notice, 
notwithstanding the fact that the aggregate 
value of all these transaction(s), whether 
undertaken directly by the company or along 
with its subsidiary(ies), may exceed the 
prescribed threshold as per the provisions of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations as applicable from 
time to time, however, that the said 
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/transaction(s) 
shall be carried out at an arm’s length basis and 
in the ordinary course of business of the 
Company; 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the ratification 
of members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to any 
contracts/arrangements/transactions or 
modification entered into by K. P. Woven 
Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) with 
related parties from 1st April, 2025 to the date 
of Annual General Meeting; 
 



 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be 
and is hereby severally authorized to execute 
all such agreements, documents, instruments 
and writings as deemed necessary, with power 
to alter and vary the terms and conditions of 
such contracts/arrangements/transactions, 
settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that 
may arise in this regard.” 
 

6. To consider and approve appointment of 
Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh (DIN: 09501515) 
as Whole-time Director of the Company for 
the period of 5 years from 12th August, 2025. 
 

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification, the following resolution 
as an “Ordinary Resolution”: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, and 203 
read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the rules made thereunder (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force), and in 
accordance with the Articles of Association of 
the Company, the consent of the members of 
the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
appoint Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh (DIN: 
09501515), as a Whole-time Director of the 
Company for a period of 5 years with effect 
from 12th August, 2025 on the terms and 
conditions including remuneration as set out in 
the explanatory statement annexed to this 
notice. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director 
and/or the Company Secretary of the 
Company be and is hereby authorised to do all 
acts, deeds, matters, and things and to sign and 
execute all necessary documents, forms, and 
returns for the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution.” 
 

7. To consider and approve appointment of 
M/s Ketan Vyas & Co. Indore, as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the 
period of 5 year from 1st April, 2025. 
 

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification, the following resolution as 
an “Ordinary Resolution”: 

 
 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force), consent of the members be 
and is hereby accorded to appoint M/s. Ketan 
Vyas & Co., Practicing Company Secretary(s) 
(having CP No. 25855), as the Secretarial 
Auditor of the Company for conducting the 
Secretarial Audit for the financial years 
commencing from FY 2025-26 up to FY 2029-30, 
for a term of five consecutive years, on a 
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of 
Directors in consultation with the Secretarial 
Auditor; 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company (including any 
Committee thereof) be and is hereby authorised 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as 
may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution and to settle any 
question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in 
this regard.” 

 
8. To consider and approve re-appointment of 

Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari, (DIN-07113136) 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company  

 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification, the following resolution as 
an “Special Resolution”: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) and the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read 
with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 
[16(1)(b) / other applicable provisions] of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force, and based on 
the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors, the approval of the shareholders be 
and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment  

 
 



 
of Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari, (DIN-07113136), 
whose first term as an Independent Director will 
be expires on 20th October, 2025, and who has 
submitted a declaration that she meets the 
criteria of independence as provided in Section 
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, and who is eligible 
for re-appointment, as an Independent Director 
of the Company for a second term of 5 
consecutive years, commencing from October 
21, 2025 and whose office shall not be liable to 
retire by rotation; 

 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors and the Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby severally 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds and 
things as may be necessary or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution and to file 
necessary forms with the Registrar of 
Companies and other statutory authorities, 
if required.” 

 

 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
L25200GJ1984PLC050560 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc., Nr. 
Panchshil Bus Stand, 
Usmanpura, Ahmedabad-380013 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 25th August, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Prakash Parekh 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00158264 

 

Notes: 
 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 
09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023, General 
Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 
2022 , General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 
19th September, 2024 and other relevant 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) and Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated 07th October, 2023, 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January, 2023, 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2024/133 Dated: October 3, 2024, 
and other relevant Circulars issued by the 
Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the 
Circulars”), Companies are allowed to hold 
AGM through VC, without the physical 
presence of members at a common venue. 
Hence in compliance with the Circulars, the 
AGM of the Company is being held through 
VC. The deemed venue for the 41st AGM 
shall be the Registered Office of the 
Company. 
 

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the 
AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy 
need not be a member of the Company. Since 
the AGM is being held in accordance with the 
Circulars through VC, the facility for the 
appointment of proxies by the members will 
not be available. 

3. Participation of members through VC will be 
reckoned for the purpose of quorum for the 
AGM as per Section 103 of the Act. 

4. Members of the Company under the 
category of Institutional Investors are 
encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM 
through VC, Corporate 
Members/Institutional Investors intending 
to authorize their representatives pursuant to 
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 to 
participate and vote at the meeting are 
requested to send a certified copy of the 
Board Resolution/ Authorization Letter to 
the Scrutinizer by email to 
csgpl@champalalgroup.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

5. The Register of Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 
Company and their shareholding 
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, 
the Register of Contract and 
Arrangement in which Directors are 
interested maintained under Section 189 
of the Act and all other documents 
referred to in the Notice will be available 
for inspection in the electronic mode 
upto the date of AGM and will also be 
available electronically for inspection by 
the Members during the AGM. Members 
seeking to inspect such documents can 
send the email to 
csgpl@champalalgroup.com.  

6. As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.II of 
the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 
5th May, 2020, the matters of Special 
Business as appearing at item No. 3 to 7 
of the accompanying Notice, are 
considered to be unavoidable by the 
Board and hence, forming part of this 
Notice. 

7. The Explanatory Statement according to 
Section 102 of the Act setting out material 
facts concerning these businesses under 
Item No 3 to 7 of the Notice is annexed 
hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to 
Regulation 36(3) of the Listing 
Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 
on General Meetings issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India, in respect of Directors seeking 
appointment/re-appointment at the 
AGM are provided as an annexure to the 
Notice. Requisite declarations have been 
received from the Directors for seeking 
appointment/re-appointment, if any. 

8. The members can join the AGM in the 
VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and 
15 minutes after the scheduled time of 
the commencement of the Meeting by 
following the procedure mentioned in 
the Notice. The facility of participation at 
the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 
made available to at least 1000 Members 
on first come first served basis.  
 

 
9. The Notice convening the AGM has 

been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.hpbl.in and may 
also be accessed from the relevant 
section of the website of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com respectively. The 
AGM Notice is also available on the 
website of NSDL at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

10. In terms of Regulation 40(1) of the 
Listing Regulations, as amended, 
securities of listed companies can be 
transferred only in dematerialized 
form with effect from 1st April, 2019, 
except in case of request received for 
transmission or transposition of 
securities. Further, SEBI had fixed 31st 
March, 2021, as the cut-off date for the 
re-lodged for transfer shall be issued 
only in dematerialized mode. The 
requests for effecting transfer/ 
transmission/ transposition of 
securities shall not be processed unless 
the securities are held in the 
dematerialized form. Transfer of 
equity shares in electronic form are 
affected through the depositories with 
no involvement of the Company. 
Members holding shares in physical 
form are requested to consider 
converting their holdings to 
dematerialized form. Members can 
contact the Company’s Registrar and 
Transfer Agent Bigshare Services 
Private Limited. 

11. Members are requested to intimate 
change, if any, about their name, postal 
address, email address, 
telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, 
Power of Attorney registration, Bank 
Mandate details etc. to their Depository 
Participate (“DP”) in case the shares 
are held in electronic form and to the 
Registrar in case the share are held in 
physical form, in prescribed Form No 
ISR-1, quoting their folio number and 
enclosing the self-attested supporting 
document.  



 
Further, Members may note that SEBI has 
mandated the submission of PAN by every 
participant in the securities market. 
 
12. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the 

Act, the facility for making a nomination 
is available for the Members in respect of 
the shares held by them. Members who 
have not yet registered their nomination 
are requested to register the same by 
submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member 
desires to cancel the earlier nomination 
and record a fresh nomination, he may 
submit the same in Form no SH-14. 
Members who are either not desiring to 
register for Nomination or would want 
to opt-out are requested to fill out and 
submit Form No ISR-3. Members are 
requested to submit the said form to their 
DP in case the share are held in electronic 
form and to the RTA in case the shares 
are held in physical form, quoting their 
folio no. 

13. To Prevent fraudulent transactions, 
members are advised to exercise due 
diligence and notify the company of any 
change in address or demise of any 
Member as soon as possible. Members 
are also advised to not leave their Demat 
account(s) dormant for long. Periodic 
statements of holding should be 
obtained from the concerned Depository 
Participant and holdings should be 
verified from time to time. 

 
14. To support the ‘Green Initiative’ 

Members who have not yet registered 
their email addresses are requested to 
register the same with their DPs in case 
the shares are held by them in electronic 
form and with the Company in case the 
shares are held by them in Physical form. 

15. Process for those shareholders whose 
email ids are not registered: 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 for physical shareholders - please 
provide necessary details like folio no., 
name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), 
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar card) by email 
to RTA email id.  

 For Demat shareholders - Please update 
your e-mail id and mobile no. with your 
respective Depository Participant (DP). 

 
16. According to the provisions of Section 

108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as 
amended) and Regulation 44 of Listing 
Regulations (as amended), and the 
MCA circulars, the company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to 
its members in respect of the business to 
be transacted at the AGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has entered into 
an agreement with NSDL for 
facilitating voting through electronic 
means, as the authorized agency. The 
facility of casting votes by a member 
using a remote e-voting system as well 
as e-voting during the AGM will be 
provided by NSDL. 

17. Members of the Company holding 
shares either in physical form or in 
electronic form as of the cut-off date of 
Thursday, 18th September, 2025 (cut-off 
date not earlier than 7 days before the 
AGM), may cast their vote by remote e-
voting. The remote e-voting period 
commences on Friday, 19th September, 
2025 at 9.00 AM (IST) and ends on 
Wednesday, 24th September, 2025 at 5.00 
PM (IST). The remote e-voting module 
shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution 
is cast by the Member, the Member shall 
not be allowed to change it 
subsequently.  

 
 



The voting rights of the Members (for 
voting through remote e-voting before 
the AGM and e-voting during the 
AGM) shall be in proportion to their 
share of the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as of the cut-off date 
Thursday, 18th September, 2025 subject 
to receipt of the requisite number of 
votes, the Resolution passed by remote 
e-voting are deemed to have been 
passed as if they have been passed at the 
AGM i.e. Thursday, 25th September, 
2025. The Notice of the AGM indicating 
the instructions for the remote e-voting 
process can be downloaded from the 
NSDL’s website 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

18. Members will be provided with the 
facility for voting through an electronic 
voting system during the video 
conferencing proceedings at the AGM 
and Members participating at the AGM, 
who have not already cast their vote by 
remote e-voting will be eligible to 
exercise their right to vote during such 
proceedings of the AGM. Members who 
have cast their vote by remote e-voting 
prior to the AGM will also be eligible to 
participate at the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again on such 
resolution for which the member has 
already cast the vote through remote e-
voting. 

19. A person whose name is recorded in the 
Register of Members or the Register of 
Beneficial Owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. 
Thursday, 18th September, 2025 shall be 
entitled to avail of the facility of remote 
e-voting before the AGM as well as e-
voting during the AGM. Any person 
holding shares in physical form and 
non-individual shareholders, who 
acquires shares of the company after the 
dispatch of this Notice and holding 
shares as on the cut-off date  

 

i.e. Thursday, 18th September, 2025 may 
obtain the User ID and password by sending 
a request along with requisite documents as 
at evoging@nsdl.co.in. However, if you are 
already registered with NSDL for remote e-
voting, then you can use your existing User 
ID and Password for casting your vote. If 
you forgot your password, you can reset 
your password by using “Forget User 
Details/ Password” or “Physical User Reset 
Password” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact at 022 - 
4886 7000. In the case of individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat 
mode and who acquires shares of the 
company and becomes a Member of the 
company after sending of the Notice and 
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 
Thursday 18th September, 2025 may follow 
steps mentioned in the e-voting instruction 
at “Login method for remote e-voting and 
joining the virtual meeting for individual 
shareholders holding securities in Demat 
Mode. 
 
20. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the 
end of discussion on the resolutions on 
which voting is to be held, allow voting, by 
use of e-voting system for all those Members 
who are present during the AGM through 
VC/OAVM but have not cast their votes by 
availing the remote e-voting facility. The e-
voting module during the AGM shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting 15 minutes 
after the conclusion of the Meeting. 
 
21. Mr. Abhishek Chhajed from M/s. 
SCS & Co. LLP, Practicing Company 
Secretaries has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer by the Board for providing a 
facility to the Members of the Company to 
scrutinize the remote e-voting process 
before the AGM as well as remote e-voting 
during the AGM fairly and transparently. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to 
the Chairman or any other person 
authorized by the Chairman after the 
completion of the Scrutiny of the e-voting 
(votes cast during the AGM and votes cast 
through remote e-voting), not later than 2 
working days from the conclusion of the 
AGM. The result declared along with the 
Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated 
to the stock exchanges on which the 
company’s share is listed, NSDL and RTA, 
and will also be displayed on the company’s 
website at www.hpbl.in. 
23. For ease of conduct, members who 
would like to ask questions may send their 
questions in advance atleast (7) days before 
AGM mentioning their name, Demat 
account number / folio number, email id, 
mobile number to 
csgpl@champalalgroup.com and register 
themselves as a speaker. Those Members 
who have registered themselves as a speaker 
will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the AGM. 

24. THE INSTRUCTION FOR MEMBERS 
FOR REMOTE E-VOTING, VOTING 
DURING THE MEETING, AND JOINING 
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE 
AS UNDER: 

 
The remote e-voting period begins on 
Friday, 19th September, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. 
(IST) and ends on Wednesday, 24th 
September, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled 
by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 
Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as 
on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 18th 
September, 2025, may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of 
shareholders shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut-off date, being 
18th September, 2025. 

 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

 
STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM 

 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-



Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You 
will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 
for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 



system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 
022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 



3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 
i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 
Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 

For example, if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders are given below: 
 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then 

you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the 
first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. 
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your 
password. 
 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(I) If your email ID is registered in your 
demat account or with the company, your 
‘initial password’ is communicated to you on 
your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox.  

Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a 
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to 
open the pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for 
CDSL account or folio number for shares held 
in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(II) If your email ID is not registered, please 
follow steps mentioned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not 
received the “Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 
a) Click on “Forgot User 

Details/Password?”(If you are holding 
shares in your demat account with NSDL 
or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 



b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are 
holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password 
by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning 
your demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered 
address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time 
Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on 
Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by 
selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” 
button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, 
Home page of e-Voting will open. 

STEP 2: CAST YOUR VOTE 
ELECTRONICALLY AND JOIN GENERAL 
MEETING ON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM. 

 
How to cast your vote electronically and join 
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you 
will be able to see all the companies 
“EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle and 
General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which 
you wish to cast your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period and casting 
your vote during the General Meeting. 
For joining virtual meeting, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed 
under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the 
Voting page opens. 

 
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate 
options i.e. assent or dissent, 
verify/modify the number of shares for 
which you wish to cast your vote and click 
on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes 
cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the 
resolution, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 

individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of 
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature 
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by 
e-mail to csabhishekchhajed1@gmail.com 
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload 
their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney 
/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 
Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 
their login. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password. 

 
 

 



3. In case of any queries, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 
on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. 
Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at 
evoting@nsdl.com. 
Process for those shareholders whose 
email ids are not registered with the 
depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for 
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this 
notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode 
please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to 
csgpl@champalalgroup.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, 
please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID 
+ CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 
client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
csgpl@champalalgroup.com. If you are an 
Individual shareholder holding securities 
in demat mode, you are requested to refer 
to the login method explained at step 1 (A) 
i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining 
virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may 
send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-
voting by providing above mentioned 
documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are 
allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants.  

Shareholders are required to update their 
mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting 
facility. 
 
25. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS 
FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE 
AGM ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of 

the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who 
will be present in the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 
their vote on the Resolutions through 
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to 
vote through e-Voting system in the 
EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote 
e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be 
contacted for any grievances connected 
with the facility for e-Voting on the day of 
the EGM/AGM shall be the same person 
mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 
26. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR 
ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to 

attend the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 
system. Members may access by following 
the steps mentioned above for Access to 
NSDL e-Voting system. After successful 
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” 
placed under “Join meeting” menu 
against company name. You are requested 
to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 
Join Meeting menu. 



The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN 
of Company will be displayed. Please note 
that the members who do not have the User ID 
and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten 
the User ID and Password may retrieve the 
same by following the remote e-Voting 
instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid 
last minute rush. 
 
2. Members are encouraged to join the 
Meeting through Laptops for better 
experience. 

3. Further Members will be required to 
allow Camera and use Internet with a good 
speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
meeting. 
 
4. Please note that Participants 
Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or 
through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss 
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. 
It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-
Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches. 

 

HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
L25200GJ1984PLC050560 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc., Nr. 
Panchshil Bus Stand, 
Usmanpura, Ahmedabad-380013 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 25th August, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Prakash Parekh 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00158264 
  



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT SETTING OUT THE MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING 
EACH ITEM OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013. 
 

Item No 3: To consider and approve the payment 
of remuneration to Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari 
(DIN: 07113136), Non-Executive Independent 
Director in excess of the limit prescribed under 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulation, 2015. 
 
The Company pays the sitting fees to its Directors 
for attending Board/ Committee Meetings. 
Further Mr. Sandeep Shah, Mr. Anil Goyal and 
Mr. Ranjeet Mal Kastia have waived their right to 
receive sitting fees for attending Meetings. In view 
of the same, the fees paid/payable to Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari for the current financial year may 
exceed fifty percent of the total annual 
remuneration payable to all Non-Executive 
Directors. The details of remuneration payable to 
Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari for the Financial Year 
2024-2025, is given under the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of the Annual 
Report. 
 
Further, in view of the provisions of Regulation 
17(6)(ca) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The 
approval of Shareholders by Special Resolution 
shall be obtained every year, in which the annual 
remuneration payable to a single Non-Executive 
Director exceed fifty percent of the total annual 
remuneration payable to all Non-Executive 
Directors. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company or their relative except 
Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari and their relatives are in 
any way concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the Resolution set out in Item No. 3 
of the Notice. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board 
recommends the Special Resolution set forth at 
Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members. 

 

Item No 4: To consider and approve Material 
Related Party Transactions of the Company.  
 
The provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
mandates prior approval of a listed entity by 
means of Ordinary Resolution for all material 
Related Party Transactions, even if such 
transactions are in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company and at arm’s length 
basis. As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations a 
transaction with related parties shall be 
considered material if the transaction(s) to be 
entered into, either individually or taken 
together with previous transactions during 
the financial year, whether directly and/or 
through its subsidiary (ies), exceed(s) Rs. 1000 
Crore, or 10% of the annual consolidated 
turnover as per the last audited financial 
statement of the listed entity, whichever is 
lower. 
 
During the Period commencing from 
conclusion of this AGM upto the conclusion of 
next AGM (up to AGM 2026), Company 
proposes to enter into certain related party 
transaction(s) as mentioned below, on 
mutually agreed terms and conditions, and the 
aggregate of such transaction(s), are expected 
to cross the applicable materiality threshold as 
mentioned above. Accordingly, as per SEBI 
Listing Regulations, prior approval of the 
members is being sought for all such 
arrangements/ transactions proposed to be 
undertaken by the Company, either directly or 
along with its subsidiary(ies). All the said 
transactions shall be in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company/ its Subsidiaries and 
on an arm’s length basis. 
 
The Company has taken approval for related 
party transactions for the financial year 2024-
2025 in their 40th Annual General Meeting held 
on 30th September, 2024. The Company 
proposes to ratify the transactions it has 
entered into with related parties since the 
beginning of financial year up to the date of 
AGM. 
 
 
 



The Audit Committee has, on the basis of 
relevant details provided by the management, 
as required by the law, at its meeting held on 
12th August, 2025, reviewed and approved the 
said transaction(s), subject to approval of the 
members, while noting that such transaction 
shall be on arm’s length basis and in the 
ordinary course of business of the Company. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
is, in any way, connected or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set 
out in Item No. 4 of the Notice except to their 
shareholding or employment in the Company, 
its Holding Company or Associate Group 
Company, if any, in the Company. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, the Board recommends the 
Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No. 4 of 
the Notice for approval of the Members. 
 

 
The relevant information pertaining to transactions with related parties under Rules 15 of 
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended and SEBI circular vide 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021 is given below: 

 
Sr 
No 

Particulars 

1 Name of 
Related Party 

HCP 
Enterprise 

Limited 

Plastene 
India 

Limited 

Plastene 
Polyfilms 
Limited 

K. P. 
Woven 
Private 
Limited 

Oswal 
Extrusion 
Limited 

HCP 
Plastene 

Bulkpack 
PLT 

2 Type of 
Transaction 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee
/ Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase 
of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering
/ Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee/ 
Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase of 
assets/ lease 
of Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering/ 
Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase
/ Sale or 
Job Work 
of 
Goods/ 
Guarante
e/ Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase 
of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Renderin
g/ 
Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee/ 
Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase of 
assets/ lease 
of Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering/ 
Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee
/ Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase 
of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering
/ Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee
/ Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase 
of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering
/ Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

3 Material 
terms and 
particulars of 
the proposed 
transaction 

Material terms and conditions are based on the contracts which inter alia include 
the rates which are based on prevailing market price and commercial terms as on 
the date of entering into the contract(s).  



4 Nature of 
Relationship 
with the 
Company 
including 
nature of its 
concern or 
interest 
(financial or 
otherwise) 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member 
of 
Director 
and 
Promoter
s 

K.P. Woven 
Private 
Limited is 
Subsidiary 
of Company 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

HCP 
Plastene 
Bulkpack 
PLT is 
Joint 
Venture of 
Company 

5 Tenure of the 
proposed 
transaction 

Upto the date of next AGM 

6 Value of the 
Proposed 
transaction 
(not to 
exceed) 

Rs. 15000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 20000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 10000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 25000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 10000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 1000 
Lakhs 

7 Value of RPT 
as % of 
Company's 
audited 
consolidated 
annual 
turnover of 
Rs. 46343.54 
Lakhs for the 
financial year 
2024-2025 

32.37 43.16 21.58 53.94 21.58 2.16 

8 If the 
transaction 
relates to any 
loans, 
inter - 
corporate 
deposits, 
advances 
or 
investments 
made 
or given by 
the 
listed entity 
or its 
subsidiary: 

The Company shall infuse Inter Corporate Deposit(s) from its internal accruals or 
borrowed funds 

(i) Details of 
financial 
indebtedness 
incurred 

None 



(ii) 
Applicable 
terms, 
including 
covenant, 
tenure, 
interest rate 
and 
repayment 
schedule, 
whether 
secured or 
unsecured, if 
secured, the 
nature of 
security 

Refer Notes No 3. Providing and Obtaining Financial Assistance 

(iii) the 
purpose for 
which the 
funds 
will be 
utilized 
by the 
ultimate 
beneficiary of 
such 
funds 
pursuant to 
the related 
party 
transaction 

Refer Notes No 3. Providing and Obtaining Financial Assistance 

9 Justification 
as to why the 
RPT is in the 
interest of the 
Company 

Refer:-                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Note No. 1- Purchase/ Sale or Job work of Goods,                                                                   
Note No. 2 - Purchase or Sale or Lease of Assets, Rendering/ Availing Services,                                                           
Note No. 3 - Providing and Obtaining Financial Assistance. 

10 Copy of the 
valuation or 
other external 
party report, 
if any such 
report has 
been relied 
upon 

Not Applicable 

11 Any other 
information 
relevant or 
important for 
the members 
to take a 
decision on 
the proposed 
transaction 

Nil 

 
 



 Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the Company 

Note 
No 

Particular Description 

1 Purchase/ Sale or Job 
work of Goods  

HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited was admitted under the 
provisions of Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016 and based on 
the Resolution plan submitted the Company is takeover by the 
Plastene India Limited. Plastene Group of Companies is a leading 
manufacturer of plastic packaging materials; in order to expand the 
operation, it is necessary to use the Company's resources 
effectively. In order to expand the business, the Company can 
purchase, sell, or do job work with the Plastene Group of 
Companies viz (HCP Enterprise, Plastene India Limited, Plastene 
Polyfilms Limited, K. P. Woven Private Limited, Oswal Extrusion 
Limited). 

2 Purchase or Sale or Lease 
of Assets, Rendering/ 
Availing Services          

For the purpose of business, Plastene Group of Companies 
purchase, sale or lease assets among themselves. Plastene Group of 
company procures, manages and provides various Admin, 
Finance, HR, IT and other Consultancy Services certainly to various 
entities of Plastene Group on need basis. 

3 Providing and 
Obtaining Financial 
Assistance 

The Company is expanding the business by utilizing resources 
effectively for the same it can extend or avail finance assistance on 
need basis, in form of corporate guarantees/ revolving interest 
bearing inter corporate deposits/ loans/ advances. The financial 
assistance will be utilised by the borrowing entity(ies) for its 
business purposes including expansion, working capital 
requirements and other business purposes. The financial assistance 
will carry interest at appropriate market rate prevailing at the time 
of disbursement and may vary depending upon the credit profile 
of the borrowing entity(ies). 

 

Item No 5: To consider and approve Material 
Related Party Transactions of the K. P. Woven 
Private Limited, a Subsidiary Company with 
certain Related Parties 
The provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, mandates 
prior approval of a listed entity by means of 
Ordinary Resolution for all material Related Party 
Transactions, even if such transactions are in the 
ordinary course of business of the company and at 
arm’s length basis. As per SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations a transaction to which the subsidiary 
of a listed entity is a party but the listed entity is 
not a party, shall be approved by Audit 
Committee if the value of such transaction 
whether entered into individually or taken 
together with previous transaction during a 
financial year exceed 10% of the annual 
standalone turnover of the subsidiary.  

Also SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations specify that a 
transaction with related parties shall be 
considered material if the transaction(s) to be 
entered into, either individually or taken together 
with previous transactions during the financial 
year, whether directly and/or through its 
subsidiary(ies), exceed(s) Rs. 1000 Crore, or 10% of 
the annual consolidated turnover as per the last 
audited financial statement of the listed entity, 
whichever is lower.  
During the Period commencing from conclusion 
of this AGM upto the conclusion of next AGM (up 
to AGM 2026), Company proposes to enter into 
certain related party transaction(s) as mentioned 
below to which subsidiary of the Company is a 
party but listed entity is not, on mutually agreed 
terms and conditions, and the aggregate of such 
transaction(s), are expected to cross the applicable 
materiality threshold as mentioned above.  
 
 
 
 



Accordingly, as per SEBI Listing Regulations, 
prior approval of the members is being sought for 
all such arrangements/ transactions proposed to 
be undertaken by the subsidiary company, either 
directly or along with its subsidiary(ies). All the 
said transactions shall be in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company/its Subsidiaries and on 
an arm’s length basis. 
 
The Company has taken approval for Related 
Party Transactions for the financial year 2024-2025 
in their 40th Annual General Meeting held on 30th 
September, 2024. Company proposes to ratify the 
transactions to which subsidiary of the Company 
is party but Company is not the party, since the 
beginning of financial year up to the date of AGM. 

 
The Audit Committee has, on the basis of relevant 
details provided by the management, as required 
by the law, at its meeting held on 12th August, 
2025, reviewed and approved the said  

transaction(s), subject to approval of the members, 
while noting that such transaction shall be on 
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business of the Company. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and their relatives is, in any way, 
connected or interested, financially or otherwise, 
in the Resolution set out in Item No. 5 of the 
Notice except to their shareholding or 
employment in the Company, its Holding 
Company or Associate Group Company, if any, in 
the Company.  

 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, the Board recommends the Ordinary 
Resolution set forth at Item No. 5 of the Notice for 
approval of the Members. 
 

 

The relevant information pertaining to transactions with related parties under Rules 15 of 
Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended and SEBI circular vide 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 22, 2021 is given below: 
 

Sr 
No 

Particulars 

1 Name of 
Related 
Party 

HCP 
Enterprise 

Limited 

Plastene 
India 

Limited 

Plastene 
Polyfilms 
Limited 

HCP 
Plastene 

Bulkpack 
Limited 

Oswal 
Extrusion 
Limited 

HCP 
Plastene 

Bulkpack 
PLT 

2 Type of 
Transaction 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee/ 
Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase of 
assets/ lease 
of Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering/ 
Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee/ 
Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase of 
assets/ lease 
of Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering/ 
Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee
/ Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase 
of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering
/ Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee/ 
Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase of 
assets/ lease 
of Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering/ 
Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee
/ Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase 
of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering
/ Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

Purchase/ 
Sale or Job 
Work of 
Goods/ 
Guarantee/ 
Sale of 
assets/ 
purchase of 
assets/ 
lease of 
Assets/ 
loans/ 
Rendering
/ Availing 
Services/ 
Others 

3 Material 
terms and 
particulars 
of the 
proposed 
transaction 

Material terms and conditions are based on the contracts which inter alia include the 
rates which are based on prevailing market price and commercial terms as on the 
date of entering into the contract(s).  



4 Nature of 
Relationship 
with the 
Company 
including 
nature of its 
concern or 
interest 
(financial or 
otherwise) 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

HCP 
Plastene 
Bulkpack 
Limited 
is Holding 
Company 

Entity 
controlled 
by close 
family 
member of 
Director 
and 
Promoters 

HCP 
Plastene 
Bulkpack 
PLT is 
Joint 
Venture of 
Company 

5 Tenure of 
the 
proposed 
transaction 

Upto the date of next AGM 

6 Value of the 
Proposed 
transaction 
(not to 
exceed) 

Rs. 10000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 50000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 10000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 25000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 10000 
Lakhs 

Rs. 1000 
Lakhs 

7 Value of 
RPT as % of 
Company's 
audited 
consolidate
d annual 
turnover of 
Rs. 46343.54 
Lakhs for 
the financial 
year 2024-
2025 

21.58 107.89 21.58 53.94 21.58 2.16 

8 If the 
transaction 
relates to 
any loans, 
inter - 
corporate 
deposits, 
advances 
or 
investments 
made 
or given by 
the 
listed entity 
or its 
subsidiary: 

The Company shall infuse Inter Corporate Deposit(s) from its internal accruals or 
borrowed funds 

(i) Details of 
financial 
indebtednes
s incurred 

None 



(ii) 
Applicable 
terms, 
including 
covenant, 
tenure, 
interest rate 
and 
repayment 
schedule, 
whether 
secured or 
unsecured, 
if secured, 
the nature of 
security 

Refer Notes No 3. Providing and Obtaining Financial Assistance 

(iii) the 
purpose for 
which the 
funds 
will be 
utilized 
by the 
ultimate 
beneficiary 
of such 
funds 
pursuant to 
the related 
party 
transaction 

Refer Notes No 3. Providing and Obtaining Financial Assistance 

9 Justification 
as to why 
the RPT is in 
the interest 
of the 
Company 

Refer:-                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Note No. 1- Purchase/ Sale or Job work of Goods,                                                                   
Note No. 2 - Purchase or Sale or Lease of Assets, Rendering/ Availing Services,                                                           
Note No. 3 - Providing and Obtaining Financial Assistance. 

10 Copy of the 
valuation or 
other 
external 
party report, 
if any such 
report has 
been relied 
upon 

Not Applicable 

11 Any other 
information 
relevant or 
important 
for the 
members to 
take a 
decision on 
the 

Nil 



proposed 
transaction 

 
 Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the Company 

Note 
No 

Particular Description 

1 Purchase/ Sale or Job work 
of Goods  

The company engages in the same business line as the related party, 
so to optimize the resources effectively, its general practice is to 
purchase, sell and job work for the goods among related parties. 

2 Purchase or Sale or Lease of 
Assets, Rendering/ 
Availing Services          

A common practice of the company is to purchase, sell, or lease 
property among related parties for business purposes. Whereas 
company has their own staff for the various departments and as per 
the requirements the company shares the resources among the 
related parties. 

3 Providing and Obtaining 
Financial Assistance 

The Company is expanding the business by utilizing resources 
effectively for the same it can extend or avail finance assistance on 
need basis, in form of Corporate guarantees/ revolving interest 
bearing inter corporate deposits/ loans/ advances. The financial 
assistance will be utilised by the borrowing entity(ies) for its business 
purposes including expansion, working capital requirements and 
other business purposes. The financial assistance will carry interest at 
appropriate market rate prevailing at the time of disbursement and 
may vary depending upon the credit profile of the borrowing 
entity(ies). 

 
Item No. 6- To consider and approve appointment 
of Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh (DIN: 09501515) as 
Wholetime Director of the Company for the period 
of 5 years from 12th August, 2025 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, at its 
meeting held on 12th August, 2025 appointed Mr. 
Aman Prakash Parekh as an Additional Director of 
the Company with effect from 12th August, 2025 
pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Articles of Association of the Company. 
Further, the Board has, subject to the approval of the 
members, appointed Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh as 
Whole-time Director of the Company for a period 
of five years, commencing from 12th August, 2025 to 
11th August, 2030 on the terms and conditions, 
including remuneration, set out herein below, 
pursuant to Sections 196, 197, 198 and 203 read with 
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Terms of Appointment: 
 Designation: Whole-time Director 
 Tenure: 5 years, from 12th August, 2025 to 

11th August, 2030 
 Remuneration: As agreed between 

management. 
 Duties: As assigned by the Board from time 

to time, in line with the Articles of 
Association. 

Brief Profile of Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh  
Name: Mr. Aman Prakash Parekh 
DIN: 09501515 
Date of Birth: 20/03/1999 
Nationality: Indian 
Qualification: Bachelor of Engineering from the 
University of Manchester 
Experience: 3 years of experience in industry, with 
expertise in Commercial operation, production and 
international business. He also has expertise in 
pitching and expanding new product etc.   
Other Directorships: HCP Enterprise Limited. 
Membership of Committees: No. 
 
 



Shareholding in the Company: 18,00,000 (16.8621%)  
Relationships with other Directors/KMP: son of Mr. 
Prakash Hiralal Parekh. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and their relatives, except Mr. Aman Prakash 
Parekh and Mr. Prakash Hiralal Parekh is concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution. 
Item No. 7- To consider and approve appointment 
of M/s Ketan Vyas & Co., as Secretarial Auditor of 
the Company for the period of 5 year from 1st April, 
2025. 
The Company is required to appoint a Secretarial 
Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit for every 
financial year as per Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25th 
August, 2025 approved the appointment of M/s. 
Ketan Vyas & Co., Practising Company 
Secretary(ies), Indore, as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company for a term of five consecutive financial 
years from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, subject to the 
approval of the shareholders at this General 
Meeting. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and their relatives are in any way concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 7. 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set 
forth in Item No. 7 for the approval of the members. 
 
Item No. 8- To consider and approve re-
appointment of Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari, (DIN-
07113136) Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Company  
he Members are informed that Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari, (DIN-07113136) was appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company at the 37th 
Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2021 
for a term of five consecutive years commencing 
from October 21, 2020 and ending on October 
20,2025. 
In terms of the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule 
IV to the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and  

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI 
LODR Regulations”), an Independent Director shall 
hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on 
the Board of a Company and shall be eligible for re-
appointment on passing of a special resolution by 
the Company and disclosure of such appointment in 
its Board’s Report. 
Based on the performance evaluation and the 
recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, at 
its meeting held on August 12, 2025 has 
recommended the re-appointment of Mrs. Meenu 
Maheshwari as an Independent Director of the 
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a 
second term of five consecutive years commencing 
from October 21, 2025 to October 20, 2030. 
Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari has given a declaration to 
the Board that she meets the criteria of 
independence as provided under Section 149(6) of 
the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI LODR 
Regulations and is not disqualified from being 
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Act. In the opinion of the Board, she fulfils the 
conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI LODR 
Regulations for re-appointment as an Independent 
Director and is independent of the management of 
the Company. 
Brief profile of Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari, nature of 
expertise in specific functional areas, directorships 
held in other companies and 
membership/chairmanship of Committees of the 
Board of other companies, as required under SEBI 
LODR Regulations and Secretarial Standards, is 
annexed to the Notice. 
The Board considers that her continued association 
would be of immense benefit to the Company and it 
is desirable to avail her services as an Independent 
Director. 
Accordingly, the Board recommends the Special 
Resolution set out in Item No. 8 of the Notice for 
approval of the Members. 
Except Mrs. Meenu Maheshwari and her relatives, 
none of the other Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and their relatives are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution 
set out at Item No. 8 of the Notice. 

 
HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 
L25200GJ1984PLC050560 
H.B. Jirawala House, Navbharat Soc., Nr. 
Panchshil Bus Stand, 
Usmanpura, Ahmedabad-380013 
 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 25th August, 2025 

By order of the Board of Directors 
For HCP Plastene Bulkpack Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Prakash Parekh 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00158264 



Annexure to the Notice 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standarad-2 on General Meeting. 
 

Name of Director Anil Goyal  Aman Prakash 
Parekh 

Meenu 
Maheshwari 

Director Identification No. 03071035 09501515 07113136 
Date of Birth 10/01/1976 20/03/1999 28/04/1973 
Nationality Indian  Indian  Indian  
Brief Resume of Director He has over 26 years of 

experience in Plastic 
Industry. He joined 
Plastene India Limited 
with enriched 
experience of handling 
international clients 
and explore 
international market. 

3 years of 
experience in 
industry, with 
expertise in 
Commercial 
operation, 
production and 
international 
business. He also 
has expertise in 
pitching and 
expanding new 
product etc.   
 

She is a 
practicing 
company 
secretary with 
vast knowledge 
of 
company law 
and other 
aligned 
matters. She has 
been guiding 
many companies 
in matters 
related to various 
acts and is very 
sound in her 
field. She has a 
great 
knowledge of 
compliance and 
will be able to 
guide the 
company 
better. 

Original Date of 
Appointment 

October 21, 2020 August 12, 2025 October 21, 2020 

Qualification Bachelors of Commerce Bachelor of 
Engineering 
from the 
University of 
Manchester 

Member of ICSI 

Experience (Years) 26 3 26 
Expertise  expertise in 

Commercial 
operation, 
production and 
international 
business. He also 
has expertise in 
pitching and 
expanding new 
product etc.   
 

Secretarial and 
legal compliance 



Remuneration last drawn 
(including sitting fees) 

NIL N.A. N.A. 

Number of Board Meeting 
attended during FY 2024-
2025 

05 N.A. 05 

Shareholding (Equity 
Shares) 

Nil  18,00,000 
((16.8621%) 

Nil 

Disclosure of relationships 
between Directors inter-se  

Not related Mr. Prakash 
Hiralal Parekh 

Not related 

Members/ Chairperson of 
Committee of the Company 

Please refer corporate 
governance report 

NIL Please refer 
corporate 
governance 
report 

Directorship held in other 
companies 

Plastene Infrastructure 
Limited 

HCP Enterprises 
Limited 

(1) Gupta 
Synthetics 
Limited 

(2) Palco Metals 
Limited 

(3) Krishna 
Capital And 
Securities 
Limited 

(4) Plastene 
Polyfilms 
Limited 

(5) Plastene India 
Limited 

(6) Vimal Oil & 
Foods 
Limited 

Membership of committee 
held in other Indian 
companies 

Nil NIL NIL 

Chairpersonship of 
committee held in other 
Indian companies 

Nil NIL NIL 

 
 
 
 
 


